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The Nebuta Festival is one of three major festivals in the Tohoku region, 
which is our franchise territory. The origin of the festival dates back to 
the beginning of the 18th century and is thought to have started as 
purification ceremonies to wash impurities into the river and the sea.

The Nebuta Festival is an annual event held in Aomori city in early 
August. It attracts more than 3.5 million tourists every year from all over 
Japan and many parts of the world. At the festival, dancers wearing 
costumes unique to the area surround Nebuta floats and dance to music 
as they parade through the city and even into the coastal waters on 
board.

The floats represent figures taken from Japanese history or myth. 
Bamboo and wire are used to make the framework for the figures, 
which are then covered with Japanese paper. Lights placed inside the 
figures are used for illumination. Nebuta floats, which can reach up to 9 
meters in width and 5 meters in height, glow in the midsummer night, 
captivating the hearts of festivalgoers.

Tohoku Electric Power organized the Nebuta Society, which builds a 
new float every year to participate in the festival. The photographs on 
the cover and back cover are of our Nebuta floats.

Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.

This report was printed in an eco-friendly manner, 
employing waterless printing and using soybean-
oil-based ink and 100% recycled paper.

ANNUAL REPORT
2003

For the year ended March 31, 2003

The photographs that appear on the covers of our annual reports are based on 
the local characteristics of the Tohoku region, our franchise territory, in 
recognition of one of the Company’s management philosophies: “prospering 
together with the community.”
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Note: Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains plans, strategies, estimates, and other forward-looking statements made by
the Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. These statements, except for the historical facts, are based on
assumptions derived from the information available to the Company at the time of writing. Issuing
statements forecasting matters, such as performance, involves an element of risk and uncertainty, and it
is possible for the Company’s expectations to differ from the future reality. The reader is thus requested
to refrain from depending solely upon the reliability of the forward-looking statements herein.
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Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc., was established in 1951 and supplies electricity to
approximately 7.6 million customers throughout the seven prefectures of the Tohoku
region, upholding its business philosophy of prospering together with the regional
community and creating the new corporate value while efficiently operating facilities
under an integrated structure of generation, transmission, and distribution.

The Company’s electric power sales in FY 2002 amounted to 74,255 million kWh,
equivalent to that of Belgium, ranking it fifth among the ten Japanese electric power
companies.

Tohoku Electric Power’s service territory covers the Tohoku region, which is an
area approximately 80,000 square kilometers—roughly the size of Austria—and the
largest of any of the service territories of the other electric power companies. The
region has a population of about 12 million, or 10% of the national total, and a
regional GDP of around $360 billion, which is almost equal to that of the Netherlands.

Industrial features in the Tohoku region include a larger share of electrical
machinery, newer manufacturing plants and facilities, and more plant constructions
when compared to other regions. And these characteristics work as an industrial
advantage for the region.

The Company has firmly established itself on the base of trust with communities in
the Tohoku region for more than half a century. Upon such a foundation, it strives
each and every day to be the preferred choice for customers as an integrated energy
services corporation.
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Millions of yen

2003 2002 2003

Operating revenues ¥1,593,832 ¥1,697,224 $13,259,833

Net income 61,901 69,998 514,983

Total assets 4,209,171 4,299,782 35,018,061

Property, plant and equipment, net 3,462,408 3,543,258 28,805,391

Total shareholders’ equity 842,440 810,919 7,008,652

Capital expenditures 244,330 284,060 2,032,695

Depreciation and amortization 283,479 318,564 2,358,394

Yen

2003 2002 2003

Net income per share ¥122.70 ¥139.20 $1.020

2003 2002
Generating capacity (MW) 16,817 16,810

Millions of yen

2003 2002 2003

Operating revenues ¥1,479,052 ¥1,556,844 $12,304,925

Net income 59,715 62,312 496,797

Total assets 3,897,981 3,970,773 32,429,126

Property, plant and equipment, net 3,258,601 3,337,860 27,109,825

Total shareholders’ equity 790,054 760,225 6,572,828

Yen

2003 2002 2003

Net income per share ¥118.51 ¥123.91 $0.985

Cash dividends per share 50.00 50.00 0.415

2003 2002
Electric power sales (millions of kWh) 74,255 72,500
Peak load (MW) 14,489 14,125
Generating capacity (MW) 16,048 16,076

Note: All dollar amounts in this annual report represent U.S. dollars translated from yen, for convenience only,
at the rate of ¥120.20=US$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange on March 31, 2003. Billion is used in the
American sense of one thousand million.

Financial and Operating Highlights
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002
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Business climate
The Japanese economy saw some sectors pick up slightly in
the first half of FY 2002 with an increase in exports and
production as the world economy started to recover and the
inventory adjustment sped up.

However, the economy failed to recover fully as domestic
demand stayed sluggish due to deflationary trends and
export-driven improvements began to let up in the second
half of the year.

The economy in the Tohoku region faced a serious
economic situation, impacted by such setbacks as reduction
in public works projects. However it had such a bright spot
that the industrial production remained relatively brisk.

Judging from economic growth rates that remained low,
growth in electric power demand was expected to decrease.
Last year, we saw competition in the electric power market
intensify with more power purchase biddings by government
offices and competition with the Power Producer and
Supplier, or PPS, as well as distributed generation
businesses. In the service areas of other electric power
companies, there have been instances of customers

switching to PPS’s. However, Tohoku Electric Power
successfully retained its deregulated extra-high-
voltage customers, none of whom left for such new
suppliers as PPS.

Review of operations
Under the circumstances mentioned earlier, Tohoku
Electric Power’s electric power sales in FY 2002
reached 74,255 million kWh, a 2.4% increase over the
previous fiscal year.

By segment, residential power sales totaled 22,914
million kWh, up 3.1% over the last fiscal year largely
due to an early cold wave that increased heating
demand, compensating for a slow growth in the
number of contracts. Non-residential power sales
increased 2.1% from the previous fiscal year to 51,341
million kWh. This was brought by the higher
commercial demand compared to the last year
mostly due to the same climatic factor for the
residential sales and also by the brisk industrial
demand mainly thanks to increased utilization hours
in the export-oriented manufacturing sector.

We are determined to meet the expectations of our customers, shareholders, and
investors continually as a trusted and preferred corporation.

Change, Innovation, and Success

Message from the Management

(left) Chairman of the Board, Toshiaki Yashima

(right) President, Keiichi Makuta
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A view of Sendai City, location of Tohoku Electric Power‘s headquarters.
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Achieving the main quantitative goals
for FY 2002
Results exceeded all the main quantitative targets for FY
2002.

Review of earnings and expenses
On the earnings side, operating revenues in FY 2002 were
¥1,479.0 billion ($12,304 million), reflecting mixed results of
increased electricity sales and a rate reduction that took effect
July 2002 (an average reduction in regulated demand of
7.10%). With regard to expenses, despite an increase in fuel
costs caused by rising crude oil prices, a decrease in
personnel expenses and depreciation as well as the
promotion of efficiency across the board resulted in ¥93.4
billion ($777 million) in income before special item and
income taxes and ¥59.7 billion ($496 million) in net income.

(Non-Consolidated basis)

Item

Return on 
assets (ROA)

Reductions in
interest-bearing 
liabilities

Outlay on facilities 
and equipment

Outlay on repairs 
and improvements

Number of 
employees

Goals for the FY 2002 
Medium-Term Business Plan 

(from FY 2002 to FY 2004)

Averaging more than 4% 
for the three-year period

Totaling less than ¥2,350 billion 
by the end of FY 2003

Averaging less than ¥230 billion 
for the three-year period

Averaging less than ¥170 billion 
for the three-year period

12,500 by the end of FY 2003

FY 2002 Results

4.7%

FY 2002 year-end balance: 
¥2,298.9 billion(a ¥108.2 billion 
decrease from the previous 
fiscal year)

¥219.5 billion

¥163.0 billion

12,812 as of the end of FY 2002
 (253 less than those in the 
previous fiscal year)

Performance outlook
Earnings for FY 2003 are expected to be around ¥1,440 billion,
($11,980 million) with rate reductions in July 2002 having an
impact throughout the year. On the spending side,
implemented efficiency measures are expected to have such
positive effects as decrease in depreciation, interest expenses
as well as other expenditure across the board.

As a result, approximately ¥95 billion ($790 million) in
income before special items and income taxes is projected to
be secured.

Looking forward
As the scope of deregulation expands step by step in the
retail power market, the business environment surrounding
electric power companies is expected to become harsher and
severer.

Tohoku Electric Power Company aims to be a corporation
that secures profitability, with each employee providing
quality services to customers and having a high sense of duty
and ethics. Moreover, the Company shall continue providing
energy to the Tohoku region in its efforts to address issues of
public interest, such as the stable supply of electricity.

Taking this position even in a competitive environment,
the Company is determined to keep meeting the expectations
of shareholders, investors, and customers as a trusted and
preferred corporation.

Toshiaki Yashima
Chairman of the Board

Keiichi Makuta
President
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An Interview with the President

What is your opinion on the deregulation of the
electric power industry?Q

A I believe that the purpose of deregulation should be to maximize the interests of
customers from a long-term point of view through steady provision of services to
the general public, such as reliable power supply and energy security.

The deregulation plan that was recently enacted is basically directed toward
balancing the issues of giving the customer more choices and securing stable
supply without only emphasizing competition principles, and it looks to be
consistent with the direction we are aiming at.

Also, as the liberalization of the electric power industry progresses, financial and
capital markets are taking a harder look at the increased risks of the business.
Against such a backdrop, in order to further strengthen our business foundation, it
is quite important to win the approval and confidence of the market.

To what aspects did you pay special care and
attention to draw up the Medium-Term
Business Plan?Q

A
Recognizing the fiscal 2003 as the year to perfect our second Medium-Term
Business Plan, we believe it is important to reinforce our price competitiveness and
strengthen public confidence in the Company while estimating various risks
associated with development of a deregulatory market design and medium- to
long-term changes in the business climate.

To this end, three key items from last year’s medium-term plan were carried
over to the FY 2003 Medium-Term Business Plan to be emphasized and taken on as
challenges of prime importance to win out in this competitive age.
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Moreover, under the FY 2003 Medium-Term Business Plan we set quantitative
targets even higher than those for the previous year. In doing so, we regard them
simply as “minimum hurdles to be cleared.” Given the fact that deregulation is
being phased in, a new way of thinking is necessary. Therefore, we are committed
to thoroughly promoting efficiency while holding nothing sacred. Also, we are
working to build a corporate culture that allows employees to review their work
from the customer’s point of view and improve themselves.

How do you plan to promote efficiency?Q
A

In our case, deregulated demand represents around 23% of the total as of the end
of FY 2002 and is expected to expand to about 63% in FY 2005.

Considering this, everyone at Tohoku Electric Power is striving even harder to
reduce costs so that the Company can offer lower rates and remain the preferred
choice for customers. In particular, we strive to continuously improve our financial
soundness by accelerating measures to increase the efficiency that we have
already attained.

In addition to cost cutting, we must take into account enhancing the profitability,
or in order words, boosting the earnings amid the expanding deregulation. To this
end, each and every employee is required to exhibit ingenuity and come up with
imaginative ideas while getting attuned with the views, values, and needs of
customers.

To fulfill its part on this score, the Company will sharpen its competitive edge by
adopting innovative ideas, such as reorganizing its corporate structure or bringing
about a catalyst of change through the employee development and utilization.

Please tell us what you think is the best way to
restore trust following a series of nuclear
power-related incidents.Q

A
We take the recent series of nuclear incidents very seriously as it greatly shakes
public trust not only in nuclear energy but also in electric power companies.

To restore public trust, we are fully committed to performing our duties properly
for the safe and secure operation of nuclear power facilities as well as regularly
communicating to local authorities and the media about the status of periodical
inspections and voluntary checks.

Through the disclosure of more detailed and plainer information as well as
activities that promote the understanding of communities, we hope to be able to
translate technical assurance into public confidence in the safety.

In the meantime, nuclear power is an essential energy source for our country in
terms of energy security and the protection of the global environment. Therefore, I
believe nuclear power generation needs to be promoted continually into the future.

President, Keiichi Makuta

Hiroko Musashi
(She belongs to the Public
Relations Dept. of Tohoku
Electric Power Co., Inc.)



 Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
Wholesale services of LNG and gasified LNG (associated business)

The Gas Business of the Tohoku Electric Power Corporate Group

Nihonkai LNG Co., Ltd. 
Delivering since April 2002
Quantity: 220 KTPA

Tohoku Natural Gas Co., Inc.
Delivering since Oct. 2002
Quantity: 2.5 KTPA

 Tohoku Natural Gas Co., Inc.
Natural gas supply

Sony Corp. Sendai Technology Center
Delivering since Dec. 1997
Quantity: 15 million m3/year 
(LNG equivalent: 12 KTPA)

TDF Corp. Miyagi Plant
Delivering since Oct. 1998
Quantity: 3.7 million m3/year 
(LNG equivalent: 3 KTPA)

Gas Bureau, City of Sendai
Delivering since April 2002
Quantity: 1,562 million m3 for 22 years
 (LNG equivalent: 1.2 MT for 22 years)

Sapporo Breweries, Ltd. Sendai Brewery
Delivering since Oct. 2002
Quantity: 6.2 million m3/year (LNG equivalent: 5 KTPA)

Yamagata Gas Co., Ltd.
Delivery scheduled to start soon after 2006
Quantity: 300 million m3 for 15 years
 (LNG equivalent: 0.24 MT for 15 years)

Fukushima Gas Co., Ltd.
Delivery scheduled to start in March 2007
Quantity: 400 million m3 for 15 years
 (LNG equivalent: 0.32 MT for 15 years)

 Nihonkai LNG Co., Ltd.
Receiving, storage, gasification, and sales of LNG

Japan Petroleum Exploration Co., Ltd.
Delivering since Dec. 1983
Quantity: 170 KTPA
(including deliveries of 50 KTPA by lorries and freight trains)

Hokuriku Gas Co., Ltd.
Delivering since Dec. 1983
Quantity: 50 KTPA

Kuraray Co., Ltd.        
Delivering since Dec. 1983
Quantity: 500 TPA

Aomori

Iwate
Akita

Yamagata
Miyagi The Pacific Ocean

The Japan Sea

Niigata
Fukushima

Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
(LNG sales)

LNG deliveries by lorries 
and freight trains to the 
northern Tohoku region

Pipeline extension to the 
southern Tohoku region

Nihonkai LNG Co., Ltd.

Tohoku Electric Power
Shin-Sendai 
Thermal Power Station3
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Tohoku EPCo’s Vision 2010
Multi-energy Service Enterprise Chosen by Customers

Our Business Domains

Environment Business

Other New Business

Overseas Activities

Tele-communication

Management Philosophy - Mutual prosperity with the regional society
- Creation of the new corporate value

Electricity
Gas / ESCO

Core Domain
Synergy with electric power
Intensive investment of 
business resources
Strengthening competitiveness 
of affiliates

Non-core Domain
Investment decision in terms of the  
creation of economic value
Flexible advance and withdrawal
Restructuring of affiliates

How is the corporate group 
going to be managed in the future?Q

A
Under its long-term plan Vision 2010, the Company set
forth its goal of being “an integrated energy services
corporation of choice” with an eye on enhancing the
value of the corporate group.

Based on this, the Company will proceed with a
focused injection of its business resources into the energy
field that is our core domain with electricity as its main
pillar and gas and ESCO (Energy Service Company) as
additional supports. Along with this effort, we aim to be a
value-added solution proposing corporate group that
offers the optimal usage of electricity according to
customer needs.

Moreover, we will restructure and reinforce peripheral
businesses involved in, among others, information and
communication, environment, and overseas activities in
order to make their operations self-sustaining.

An Interview with the President

<Noshiro Biomass Power Station>
It was constructed by Tohoku Energy Service Co., Inc. and
commenced commercial operations in February 2003. The
cogeneration power station utilizes wood waste (barks, chips)
and makes good use of exhaust heat created in the process of
generation.
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Finally, please tell us about the Company’s
future ambitions.Q

A
Today, electric power companies face various challenges, such as dealing with
evolving deregulation and global environmental issues and lessening concerns
over nuclear energy.

Despite this, we have been successfully meeting the challenge primarily by
improving price competitiveness through rate reductions. And this has clearly been
shown by the fact that as of June 2003 no customer in the deregulated sector (a
receiving voltage of 20 kV or above with a contracted supply of 2,000 kW or above)
switched to other utilities or IPPs.

In addition, our EVA®- based management keeps us ahead of the mid-term target
for ROA.

Moreover, our service area is less affected by cyclical changes or an economic
downturn thanks to a large number of electrical machinery and other advanced-
technology factories. These industries are underpinned by their relatively high
productivity and buoyed by such regional development as new Bullet Train routes
and highway networks.

On top of these, a cool climate in the region yields an efficient operation. To be
specific, a smaller difference between a peak and a trough in annual demand leads
to a higher capacity factor of generating facilities.

By fully leveraging these strengths, we will further endeavor to balance the
promotion of efficiency with public interest under our business philosophy of
prospering with the regional community and creating the new corporate value. 

Furthermore, we look at evolving deregulation as a business opportunity and
take a proactive approach to various challenges.

What role does Tohoku EPCo play in the
region? And what kind of social contribution
does the Company has been making?Q

A
Our management philosophy includes prospering with regional
communities, and since the establishment of our company we have
pursued such mutual prosperity based on the idea that Tohoku Electric
Power should progress with the region, and we have developed businesses
accordingly. Our relationship with our hometown, which spans more than
50 years from start-up to present, is a great asset.

The Tohoku region continues to be the most important foundation of our
operations for the future, and our management approach oriented around
the development of regional communities will never change. 

As deregulation advances, public utility function of electricity suppliers
will be highlighted further, whereas this function has been taken for
granted till today. To elaborate, under the deregulated market, electricity
rates would naturally be a key factor for customers to select their supplier.
But such choice is possible only on the basis of utility’s public function,
including reliable supply. In addition, it will take on more importance for
suppliers to have trust-based relationships with customers and
communities.

With this in mind, the Company will continually support the region
through its reliable electricity supply.

As for concrete activities that help invigorate and globalize the Tohoku
region, we work to promote the Tohoku Intelligent Cosmos Plan, which
involves creating a model for a future industrial society, as well as support
international seminars that are conducive to the globalization of the Tohoku
region. Also, Toshiaki Yashima, Tohoku Electric Power’s chairman of the
board, acts as chair of the Tohoku Economic Federation* and helps with
the development and prosperity of the region.
(Note)
* The Tohoku Economic Federation puts prime importance on the economic and industrial
revitalization and the creation of new businesses and industries in the Tohoku region and is
actively working on projects that help advance its self-reliant prosperity.
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In February 2003, Tohoku Electric Power
devised and announced its FY 2003 Medium-
Term Business Plan for FY 2003–FY 2005.

The future business environment is expected
to change dramatically as deregulation evolves,
price competition intensifies, and selection by
the capital market becomes severer.

With this in mind, the plan advocates the
fundamental goals of reinforcing price
competitiveness and strengthening public
confidence in the Company to embody its
vision of being the preferred choice for
customers as an integrated energy services
corporation, as delineated in Vision 2010.

Under these fundamental goals, there are six
policies that we shall continue to focus and
work on. In particular, the following three
challenges are identified as issues of prime
importance that need to be focused on in order
for us to win in an era of competition.

As always, we strive for innovation under
new management plans to remain trusted as a
company that is preferred by customers in the
future.

Reinforcing Cost Competitiveness and
Financial Structure1

Outline of the Medium-Term Business Plan

Issues of Prime Importance

(¥ billions)

Interest-Bearing Liabilities
(Non-Consolidated basis)
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Under the FY 2002 plan, our goal was to reduce the FY 
2003 year-end balance of interest-bearing liabilities to less 
than ¥2,350 billion, which we achieved a year ahead of 
schedule as a result of our efforts to improve capital 
efficiencies, such as making more efficient investments in 
plant and equipment and streamlining assets.

(FY)

(¥ billions)

Capital Expenditures
(Non-Consolidated basis)
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To average ¥210 billion
or less per year.
(From FY2003 to FY2005)

Include in expenditure of incidental business.

2002

219.5

2001

255.9
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255.0
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304.2
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378.8

(FY)

Item

Main Quantitative Goals

Return on assets (ROA)

Reductions in interest-
bearing liabilities

Outlay on facilities 
and equipment

Outlay on repairs 
and improvements

Number of employees

Goals for the FY 2002 Medium-Term 
Business Plan

 (from FY 2002 to FY 2004)

Averaging more than 4% 
for the three-year period

Totaling less than ¥2,350 billion 
by the end of FY 2003

Averaging less than ¥230 billion 
for the three-year period

Averaging less than ¥170 billion 
for the three-year period

12,500 by the end of FY 2003

Goals for the FY 2003 Medium-Term 
Business Plan 

(from FY 2003 to FY 2005)

Averaging more than 4% 
for the three-year period

Totaling less than ¥2,100 billion 
by the end of FY 2005

Averaging less than ¥210 billion 
for the three-year period

Averaging less than ¥160 billion 
for the three-year period

Reduced to around 12,300 
by the end of FY 2005

To reinforce cost competitiveness, Tohoku Electric Power promotes bold cost
reduction measures, holding nothing sacred, and thoroughly streamlining assets
to make its financial soundness even stronger. The Company has set main
quantitative targets, including ROA, as follows to enhance its corporate value
even amid the harsh competitive environment. We aim to attain these targets by
continually improving EVA

®
* (a financial yardstick to measure business

performance) as we already introduced EVA 
®

into its planning management
cycle. These goals are more demanding this year than those in the preceding
fiscal year. However, they are the minimum hurdles that must be cleared.

In addition, to cope with changes in the external environment caused by
evolving deregulation, changes in environmental regulations and limited
growth in power demand, the Company works toward achieving the optimal
formation of facilities that are flexible and competitive. It also endeavors to hold
down outlay on facilities and equipment as well as reduce repair costs and
other expenses.
*EVA

®
is a registered trademark of Stern Steward & Co. 

Overview of the FY 2003 Medium-Term Business Plan

Management philosophy: Prospering together with the 
community and creating the new corporate value

Direction of business development: Improving the value 
of the corporate group

1. Enhancing price competitiveness over
    competitors and strengthening  marketing

2. Promoting  financial strategies aimed at 
    increasing the corporate value

3. Consolidating the basis of an integrated 
    energy services company

More thorough efforts to enhance cost 
competitiveness and create a stronger financial 
structure

The challenge of improving profitability by 
rebuilding a business model that offers the best 
value for customers

A stronger management base conducive to 
improving public confidence and realizing 
competition strategies

4. Promoting corporate innovation

5. Steadily overcoming  challenges of public 
    interest and properly responding to society

6. Coping with structural changes in the 
    electric power industry

Image of the corporate group: Integrated energy services 
company that is trusted and preferred by customers

● Structural changes to the market caused by 
evolving deregulation

● Intensified price competition and severer 
selection by the capital market

● Increased public concerns and need for 
disclosure

● Emerging environmental challenges affecting 
the future management

Key Policies Issues of Prime Importance

Fundamental Goal
Enhanced price competitiveness and public confidence in the Company

To strengthen price competitiveness over rivals and realize competition strategies 

Vision 2010
Change, Innovation, and Success

Key Changes in the External Environment

FY 2003 Medium-Term Business Plan (FY 2003 to FY 2005)

Focusing through
 Selection and Concentration
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Rebuilding a Business Model that Offers the
Best Value for Customers to Improve
Profitability

Reinforcing the Business Base for Public
Confidence Enhancement and Competition
Strategy Realization

To provide diverse services that meet customer needs, we aim to build a good
rapport with customers; understand and analyze their expectations and needs;
and implement effective marketing activities. Moreover, we promote solution-
type sales and cultivate its market, which enables us to help resolve various
concerns of our customers (i.e., energy conservation, cost saving, and
environmental improvement) together with them.

In concrete terms, systems capitalizing on the features of electricity are
recommended to customers. These mainly comprise all-electric housing, which
is highly praised by customers for being comfortable, safe, and economical; a
commercial electric cooking system that is advantageous in managing safety,
work environment, and hygiene; and an ice-based heat storage air-conditioning
system that leads to reduced running costs for customers. By providing
services that satisfy customer needs in this way, we work toward expanding
demand. (See also the following sales and marketing goals.)

Furthermore, in the gas business and ESCO business, we pursue growth
opportunities.

2

Tohoku Electric Power will fulfill its corporate accountability and attain all the
more thorough compliance with an accepted code of practice to enhance public
confidence in the Company while responding to growing demand for
information disclosure, fully recognizing that such confidence constitutes the
very foundation for its existence and growth.

Furthermore, to come out on top of fierce market competition, we will
establish the robust corporate governance, which will speed up the overall
management process and enhance the quality of strategies, while developing,
utilizing, and revitalizing the human resources to work as a catalyst of corporate
innovation.

Also, Tohoku Electric Power intends to strengthen its risk management to
cope with environmental issues and unstable demand patterns that are
expected to result from the evolving electricity deregulation. Moreover, we will
consolidate the base for environmental management primarily through
measures to prevent global warming, promotion of renewable energy, and
conservation of energy and natural resources.

3
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All-electric housing offers energy saving as well as safety 
and comfort by utilizing induction cookers, electric water 
heaters, and heat-storage electric heating systems. 
Combined with economic efficiency gained from discount 
midnight power rates, the all-electric system has been 
gaining more and more customer acclaim and steadily 
expanding its user base.
    Systems installed in 9,821 households, surpassing the 
FY 2002 target of 7,000.  (Cumulative total: 65,614 
households)

(FY)

Increase of around 
30,000 for the next 
three years

Sendai thermal power station Unit 3 (175-MW output) shut down for long-term planned outage (April 2002)

Highlights of Streamlining Facilities (Plan)

Sendai thermal power station Unit 1 (175-MW output) to be shut down for long-term planned outage (by the end 
of FY 2003)

Akita thermal power station Unit 1 (350-MW output) to be closed down (by the end of FY 2003)

Substantial postponement of the development plan for Noshiro thermal power station Unit 3 (600-MW output)

Change in a management body for the development, and postponement of the plan for Joetsu thermal power 
station Unit 3 (1,440-MW output)

Halting and closing aging thermal power stations and postponing the development of 
new power resources

Item

Sales and Marketing Goals

All-electric housing 

Commercial electric 
cooking system 

Peak load reduction

Creating a 
midnight load 

Goals for the FY 2002 Medium-Term 
Business Plan (from FY 2002 to FY 2004)

Increase of around 23,000 households

Increase of around 78 MW

Reduction of around 40 MW 

Growth of around 300 MW 

Goals for the FY 2003 Medium-Term 
Business Plan (from FY 2003 to FY 2005)

Increase of around 30,000 households

Increase of around 90 MW

Reduction of around 30 MW

Growth of around 450 MW 

Onagawa nuclear power station.

All-electric housing is highly praised by
customers for being comfortable, safe, and
economical.

Construction work at the Higashidori nuclear
power station Unit 1.
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Electricity Deregulation 
(System Reform of the Electric Power Industry)

(1) Summary of electricity deregulation
Electricity deregulation has already been carried out in phases, and competition principles have
already been introduced on the electricity supply side. For example, in 1995 a bid system was
introduced in the wholesale power supply aimed at the expansion of new entries into the power
generation business. Also, in 2000 the partial deregulation of the electricity market was carried
out to satisfy Extra High Voltage demand (customers with a contracted demand of over 2MW at
voltage of over 20kV).

The purpose of the last system reform was to build a model for a Japanese electric power
industry that can balance public interest with business efficiency upon the evaluation of the
existing system and examples of foreign countries. In other words, both broadening customer
options and securing stable supplies are pursued through the preparation of a free business
environment.

In the spirit of such a system reform, a revised Electric Utility Law was passed in June 2003.
The revised Law assumes the achievement of public-interest issues, such as providing a stable
power supply, as the major premise. It aims at fair and transparent competition by increased
options for customers while further promoting the efficiency of the electric power business
through the dynamic competition. To be more precise, the Law incorporates new steps for
activating inter-regional competition and securing fairness and transparency in transmission
and distribution operation.

With a new system design, competition is expected to intensify. Thus, the business climate
surrounding electric power companies will become even severer in the future.

●Japan is poor in energy resources and depends on imports from abroad to satisfy a predominant portion
of its consumption. To prevent global warming, Japan’s electric power industry has to honor the
international pledge to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. In the meantime, voices remain strong in
demanding regulatory reforms and the correction of disparities between domestic and foreign prices
because of a prolonged recession.

●Against this backdrop, the Electricity Industry Subcommittee under the Advisory Committee for Energy &
Natural Resources examined the issue for approximately one and a half years, and decided to prepare a
fair and transparent competitive environment, while maintaining the merits of an integrated system of
generation and transmission, energy security, and environmental preservation.

●In terms of deregulating the electricity market, Japan is behind from other developed nations. Despite
this, a model for a Japanese electricity industry shall be built so that increased options for its customers
are balanced with a secured stable supply by maximizing its latecomer advantages; and by basing the
process upon the environmental settings and historical developments unique to Japan.

➀Building a model for Japan’s electric power industry

●Present (from March 2000): Only the Extra High Voltage segment (customers with a contracted demand
of over 2 MW at voltage of over 20 kV) is being deregulated.

●The scope of deregulation will be expanded sometime in April 2004 to include the segment of High
Voltage customers with a contracted demand of over 500 kW.

●The scope will be further expanded to include those with a contracted demand of over 50 kW sometime
in April 2005, thus covering the entire High Voltage segment.

●Discussions will start by April 2007 to examine full-scale deregulation, which includes a residential segment.

➁Expanding the deregulation scope in the retail power market

Close-up

1

Highlights of the System Reform
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◆Rule making and monitoring by a neutral body
The establishment of a neutral body that sets basic rules regarding the formation of transmission
facilities and systems operation, monitors the status of operations, and mediates disputes.

◆Code of conduct
Information firewall:

Ban the use of information obtained by transmission/distribution operators through wheeling activities
for the purposes other than its original intent.

Separation of accounting:
Prevent cross-subsidizing by preparing and disclosing income and expenditure account statements for
the wheeling business conducted by transmission and distribution operators.

Prohibition of discriminatory treatment:
Ban unfair, discriminatory treatment against any power producer/supplier by the wheeling business.

➂Securing fairness and transparency in transmission 
and distribution

◆Creating a wholesale power exchange
A wholesale power exchange shall be created by 2005 to effectively use surplus energy and diversify
routes of sales and purchases of electricity.

◆Reviewing the current system of multiple transmission charges
(resolving the issue of “pancaking”)
●To effectively use power sources across regions, transmission charges added whenever electricity is

delivered over the supply area of an electric power company shall be abolished. Instead, the
transmission tariff of an electric power company in a demand area shall be uniformly applied.

●In this way, the whole country theoretically becomes one market, and customer’s options are expected
to increase.

◆Rules of load following and a review of imbalance charges
●Because electricity cannot be stored, new entrants are currently required to meet the 30-minute rule of

load following (a rule to keep the difference between supply and demand within a three percent range
at each 30-minute interval). However, more flexibility shall be allowed for this range.

●Imbalance charges shall be reviewed on condition that an incidence of excessive imbalance can be
prevented.

●Backup charges at the time of an accident shall be abolished and unified with imbalance charges.

➃Activation of nationwide power trading

●From the viewpoint of energy security and environmental preservation, nuclear power is still a basis of
Japan’s energy policy. At the same time, its initial investment is huge and its cost recovery period is
long. Besides, the back-end issue extends over too long a period for any investor-owned company to
deal with. Because of these reasons, it is believed that nuclear power does not fit well in a deregulated
environment where economical efficiency (short-term profit) is pursued.

●In view of this status, the last system revision specified that a conclusion shall be drawn by the end of
2004 concerning details of the new system including concrete financial measures. It also required that
such a conclusion be based on; the analysis mainly about profitability of the entire nuclear power
generation business encompassing the back-end operation; and the clarification in division of roles by
the government and the private sector.

●This will help prepare a market environment that will make it possible for electric power companies, as
private enterprises, to keep providing nuclear power even after the scope of deregulation expands while
making use of the long-term economic merits of nuclear energy.

➄Balancing nuclear energy and deregulation
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Series of Nuclear Power Incidents
In August 2002, the inappropriate handling of inspections and repair works at nuclear power
stations of other electric power company was discovered. In response to such exposure, METI
(through NISA

1
) instructed companies and agencies that own nuclear power facilities to carry out a

comprehensive investigation and secure the appropriateness of voluntary inspections
2

of nuclear
power facilities.

(Notes)
1. METI stands for the Minister of Economy, Trade and Industry. It regulates the nuclear industry mainly through its

administrative arm NISA, or Nuclear and Industrial Safety Agency.
2.According to the Electric Utility Law, nuclear power plants are to shut down their reactors for inspection by government

officials (periodical inspections) once a year (within 13 months). On top of these statutory inspections, electric power
companies are to conduct self-imposed checks and inspections (voluntary inspections) as a part of their voluntary
maintenance.

Following the instruction, the Company established an investigation committee for the voluntary
inspection of nuclear power facilities in September 2002 and thoroughly investigated past voluntary
inspections at the Onagawa nuclear power station. The committee’s findings were compiled in
interim reports in November 2002 and December 2002, and the final report was made in March 2003.

2

Close-up

(2) Our response to electricity deregulation
Deregulation is expected to intensify price and service competition among various players.
Therefore, the business environment will greatly change. However, to balance the promotion of
efficiency with public interest is a mission the electricity business must complete.

This mission will remain the constant no matter how drastically a situation may change with the
times. And an electric utility will continue to be the main player in the market as well as the leading
and responsible figure in power supply.

As previously stated, we have formulated the FY 2003 Medium-Term Business Plan to cope with
the competitive environment. We are fully aware of the fact that whether we will win or not in this
competitive age hinges on how successfully we can execute the Plan. Upon this recognition,
Tohoku Electric Power will be totally committed to pushing forward as a trusted and preferred
corporation for customers through its corporate innovation efforts.

◆Current Deregulation Structure (after March 2000) ◆Design of a New System

◎Schedule of Upcoming Major Reforms to the System (Subject to change)

Generation

Wholesale 
electricity 
companies

Other electric 
power companies

Regulated Deregulated

Power Producer
 and Supplier 

(PPS)

Transmission 
and Distribution 

Retail

Generation

Wholesale power exchange

Review of the multiple 
transmission charges

 (Resolving the issue of 
“pancaking”)

Transmission 
and Distribution 

Regulated Deregulated

Phased expansion of the retail deregulation scope

FY 2002

Report by 
Subcommittee

Revision to the 
Electric Utility Law

Discussions aimed at full-scale 
deregulation to start

FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 After FY 2008

Retail

Generation/Transmission/
Distribution–integrated 
electric power company

Generation/Transmission/
Distribution-integrated 
electric power company

Low Voltage customers High Voltage customers (over 50 kW)

Partial deregulation in force 
(over 20 kV, 2 MW)

Wholesale 
electricity 
companies

Other 
electric power 

companies

Power Producer 
and Supplier 

(PPS)

Expansion of 
deregulation 
(High Voltage, 
over 500 kW) by 
April 2004

Expansion of deregulation (High Voltage, 
over 50 kW) by April 2005

Examination of full-scale deregulation, 
including customers of less than 50 kW, to 
start in April 2007

A neutral body and a wholesale power exchange to be operational (after FY 2005)
Existing multiple transmission charges to be abolished and changed to a new system (after FY 2005)

Examination of policy measures regarding 
nuclear power (by the end of 2004)

●Rule making and monitoring by a neutral body
●Secured fairness and transparency of 
    transmission and distribution operations
●Change of rules concerning load following, etc.

Transmission service (wheeling)
Transmission service

 (wheeling)

Other customers
Extra High Voltage 

customers (over 20 kV 2 MW) 
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Reinforced Efforts on Corporate Ethics
and Compliance

As a result of this thorough investigation, the Company confirmed that there had been no illegal
acts, such as manipulation of inspection records; procedures had been properly followed according
to laws and ordinances; and measures to prevent illegal acts had been steadily executed.

In April 2003, NISA sent Tohoku Electric Power its evaluation of the Company’s reports,
confirming that the extensive investigation conducted by the Company was appropriate and that
the secured safety of its nuclear facilities was unquestionable. 

As shown below, the Company is wholly committed to pushing ahead with new measures to
prevent any violation. These include enhancing information disclosure and reinforcing a quality
assurance system. In this way, Tohoku Electric Power has been stepping up its efforts to gain local
community’s trust in the nuclear power by not only taking into account technical assurance but also
focusing on the public’s sense of safety.

The Company views enhancement in corporate ethics as a permanent challenge. In October 1993,
the Corporate Ethics Committee (chairman: an executive vice president) was established, and the
Guidelines for Corporate Behavior were formulated in February 1999. In accordance with these
developments, we have been conducting ourselves in a fair and honest manner in all the business
operations.

To strengthen its efforts on corporate ethics and compliance, the Company President became the
chairman of the Corporate Ethics Committee in October 2002, and in February 2003 the Guidelines
for Corporate Behaivior were reviewed to create a more robust relationship built on trust with
society, ensure thorough compliance, and clarify the roles and responsibilities of the top
management.

Also, to strengthen the system of driving the effort the Company newly appointed a corporate
ethics officer in April 2003 and set up the Corporate Ethics Contact to answer inquiries and give
consultations regarding corporate ethics and compliance across the entire operation of the
Company.

Reference
Regarding cracks detected on a shroud

1
of the Onagawa nuclear power station Unit 1 and the recirculation piping of the

reactor
2
, the Company is committed to continually treating them in a proper manner, based fully on the evaluation and

judgment of the government.
Specifically, in February 2003 an evaluation on the soundness of the shroud was reported to NISA. NISA reviewed the

report and sent us a copy, which stated that our evaluation had been properly done and that repair work was not necessary
at that time.

Therefore, the Company decided to conduct voluntary check-ups at appropriate intervals to follow up the next statutory
inspection instead of surgically removing the cracks. 

On the other hand, the recirculation piping with cracks was entirely replaced with a new piping at the last (15th)
statutory inspection. Moreover, to analyze and improve the measurement precision of ultrasonic inspections, we
voluntarily used ultrasonic examination methods that are different from the conventional procedure and took
measurements again. Actual (hands-on) measurements were also made to confirm the precision of the new methods.

After the completion of these measures, the Onagawa Unit 1 has resumed its operation in July 2003.

(Notes)
1. The shroud is a cylindrical device installed in a reactor pressure vessel to surround fuel assemblies. It functions as a barrier to divide the flow

of the coolant water inside the reactor.
2. Recirculation piping is attached to a nuclear reactor recirculation pump that circulates coolant water inside the reactor, regulates its flow, and

governs the output of the nuclear reactor.

3

New Measures to Prevent Any Violation
1. Building up Public Confidence in the Safety

(1) Utilizing an outside independent body 
(the Advisory Council on Safety and Confidence in Nuclear Power)

(2) Securing transparency by information disclosure

2. Proper Job Execution to Restore Trust

Enhancing Systems for Job Execution
(1) Reinforcing / enhancing a quality assurance system
(2) Enhancing internal communication 

Fostering Corporate Ethos Filled with Free and Open Communication
(1) Messages thoroughly communicated by the top management
(2) Reinforced efforts on corporate ethics and compliance
(3) Enhanced exchange of personnel
(4) Improved dialogues

Onagawa nuclear
power station Unit 1
opened to the media.
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Environmental Action

Considering its position in the energy industry, addressing environmental issues is one of the key
management challenges for Tohoku Electric Power.

Accordingly, we have been proactively proceeding with this aspect. The Company has formulated its
Environmental Policy representing the fundamental philosophy of its environmental activities and devised
a medium-term environmental action plan covering three fiscal years.

Moreover, an environmental management system was introduced to the entire company to make
continuous improvements (i.e., reducing an environmental impact) in its environmental initiatives though
the “Plan-Do-Check-Action” cycle with one of the executive vice presidents serving as general manager
responsible for the system.

Environmental Policy

Tohoku Electric Power, together with local communities, constantly strives to form a socio-economic
system that is in harmony with the environment.

Key Objectives of the Environmental Action Plan

●Promote measures to prevent global warming.
●Promote resource conservation and recycling to help create a sustainable “eco society.”
●Preserve the local environment.
●Enhance environmental communication with customers.
●Make continuous improvements through environmental management.

●The best mix of power sources to curb CO2 emissions
The Company develops and operates the best generation mix to control CO2

emissions by balancing nuclear, its main source, with thermal, hydro,
geothermal and others while taking into account their environmental
characteristics, economics, supply reliability and operational efficiency.

The Company’s CO2 emissions totaled about 31.56 million tons in FY
2002. This is estimated to be half the amount (64.36 million tons) that would
be emitted if the equivalent electricity were generated only by fossil fuels
except LNG.

●Achieving the world’s highest standards: 
Super-high efficient generation
At thermal power stations, we promote both CO2 emissions reduction and
cost cutting by raising thermal efficiency, thus limiting the consumption of
fossil fuels.

At the Higashi-Niigata thermal power station Unit 4-1 (an LNG combined
cycle generation system with an output of 826 MW), we achieved a world-
class heat efficiency of 50.32% (HHV: higher heating value) through the
development and deployment of advanced technologies. In addition, the
utilization of the Haramachi thermal power station Unit 1 and 2 (with a total
output of 2,000 MW), which are conventional high-efficiency coal-fired
thermal power units, helps us achieve heat efficiency rates of over 40%
(HHV) for the entirety of our thermal power stations.

● Promotion of renewable energy usage
In recent years, purchases of electricity generated using renewable energy
sources have markedly increased through opening bids for large wind
turbine generators and giving preferential purchase prices to renewable-
based electricity mainly from solar, wind and refuse-derived fuel generators.

The Company will continually promote the usage of renewables in
accordance with the Japanese RPS (Renewable Portfolio Standard) Law
taken into effect in April 2003, which requires electric power companies to
utilize a set amount of renewable energy.

Other initiatives contributing to the effort include; donating to the Tohoku

Reduction of CO2 emissions

LNG-fired power
7.14 million tons less CO2

Nuclear power
14.09 million tons less CO2

Geothermal power and
renewable energies
1.56 million tons less CO2

64.36
million tons - CO2

31.56
million tons - CO2

(FY 2002)

Hydroelectric power
10.01 million tons less CO2

Estimates of CO2

emissions for
all electricity generated

from coal and oil Actual CO2 emissions

Highlights of Environment Measures

Combined cycle power generation utilizes high-
temperature exhaust from a gas turbine in combination
with gas turbine generation.
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Green Fund1; investing in the Green Power Certification System2 (operated by
Japan Natural Energy Co., Ltd.); demonstration tests of wind power
generation (3,375kW) at the Tappi Wind Park; demo tests of polymer
electrolyte fuel cell units; and a wind power generation business (14,400kW)
by one of our Group companies (Tohoku Natural Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.).

(Notes)
1. Tohoku Green Power Fund:

Under this scheme, Industrial Vitalization Center for Tohoku subsidizes construction of a wind or
solar power generation facility using funds donated by customers and Tohoku Electric Power.

2. Green Power Certification System:
Customers (mainly in the commercial/industrial segment) can obtain certificates issued by Japan
Natural Energy Co., Ltd. in proportion to their commitment to renewable-derived electricity. Such
customers can utilize the certificate as a means to promote their environmental initiatives since this
certificate signifies the value brought by renewable power sources, namely conservation of fossil
fuels and reduction in CO2 emissions.

●Additional contributions to the World Bank’s Prototype
Carbon Fund (PCF)
PCF is a scheme to promote the worldwide prevention of global warming
through financial support and technology transfers to projects that cope with
global warming in developing countries.

The fund started in April 2000, and its steady performance resulted in the
first CO2 emission credit generated in FY 2003.

Our reasons for participating in this fund are to secure CO2 emission
credits, develop projects, and acquire know-how, such as procedures to
certify the amount of emissions.

●Effective waste utilization beat targets for the FY 2003
ahead of time
Industrial waste is produced in the coal/oil combustion process at our
generation plants. This includes coal ash, specifically cinders and fly ash, and
such by-product as gypsum in the form of sludge from flue gas desulfurizers.
We have been maintaining a clean track record in terms of both managing
and utilizing these waste materials.

Waste from FY 2002 operation was reduced by 18,000 tons from the
previous fiscal year. At the same time, utilization rate improved substantially
from 83.9% to 94.4% as the effective conversion of waste, including coal ash,
into useful products increased by 107,000 tons. As a result, an amount of
ultimate disposal shrank from 189,000 tons to 64,000 tons, achieving the goal
for FY 2003 one year ahead of schedule.

World Bank

Prototype
Carbon

Fund Project

Contributions

Emissions credits

Investments

Emissions credits

PCF is an international system financed by contributions from 
developed nations and various businesses.
This fund invests in projects for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions in developing countries and East European countries, 
and returns GHG emission reduction credits resulting from the 
implementation of projects.
The participants are six governments and 17 companies, 
including Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.

Country A

Company B

Company C

Industrialized
nations

Project A

Project B

Project C

Developing countries
East European nations

PCF profile

661,338 872,939 923,161

1,115,135

989,908

1,179,442

1,096,954

1,161,491
1,162,034

1,023,689

64.6
75.1
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Noshiro wind power station.(Tohoku Natural
Energy Development Co., Ltd.)
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International Activities of Tohoku Electric Power

(1) Energy saving model project at thermal power generation facilities in Kazakhstan

Tohoku Electric Power has been continually engaged in various international activities by making full use
of its technologies. Examples include: participating in an IPP (Independent Power Producer) project in
Australia where the power market was already deregulated; undertaking projects in developing countries
sponsored by NEDO1 and JICA2; and concluding MOUs with Korean energy businesses.

In August 2002, the Overseas Business Project Team was established as an independent organization
inside the Company and is proactively involved in business activities with cost responsibilities clarified
and transparency in business administration secured.

In September 2002, Tohoku Electric Power was entrusted by
NEDO with an energy saving model project as a part of its
rationalization program of international energy use.

The project site is the Uralsk heat power station in the province
of West Kazakh in the Republic of Kazakhstan. By utilizing both a
highly efficient 25 MW grade gas turbine and its high-temperature
exhaust heat through an installed heat recovery steam generator,
this project aims to improve generation efficiency and diffuse
energy-saving technologies.

The project period is four years, from FY 2002 to FY 2005, and
the Company is to carry out construction and demonstration runs.

Incidentally, this was a CO2 emissions reduction project that
utilized the Kyoto mechanism, and the very first JI* project
undertaken by a Japanese entity.

(Notes)
1. The New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization is a government-affiliated corporation.
2. The Japan International Cooperation Agency is a government-affiliated corporation.

(Note)
*Joint implementation is one method under the CO2 reduction program described
in the Kyoto Protocol. It is a scheme to reduce CO2 emissions by creating joint
businesses between developed nations.

In November 2002, the Company invested in an IPP project
involving a Millmerran coal-fired thermal power station in
Queensland, Australia. It is the Company’s first overseas
generation project.

The power station is a super-critical coal-fired thermal power
station with a capacity of 840 MW (420 MW × 2) that commenced
operations last year. The electric energy generated at this power
station is being traded in the power pool.

The Company has a seat on the board of the project. Moreover,
on-site technicians are dispatched from the Company to offer their
expertise on the construction and operation of the Millmerran
power station. Their expert skill and knowledge is based on their
experience at the Haramachi and Noshiro thermal power stations,
which are the same type of coal-fired power stations as the
Millmerran.

As for the investment and participation, the Company
established a wholly owned subsidiary, the Tohoku Power
Investment Company B.V. (TPIC), in the Netherlands to make
financing more efficient and avoid the impact of fluctuating
exchange rates.

Know-how in the generation business in overseas deregulated
power markets can be obtained by participating in this project,
and we intend to use such know-how to enhance our
competitiveness.

(2) Participation in the generation business in Australia

◆Technical support provided to developing countries 
and know-how acquired in the IPP business

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

NORTHERN TERRITORY

QUEENSLAND

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

NEW SOUTH WALES

VICTORIA

TASMANIA

Adelaide

Perth

Melbourne

Hobart

Sydney

Canberra

Brisbane
Gold coast

Cairns

Darwin

Millmerran

AUSTRALIA

Uralsk heat power station.
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◆Reduction of risks associated with fuel supply
We concluded the MOUs on fuel procurement with the following two foreign entities. To cope with changes in the future
business environment, the Company aims to gain more flexibility and economic leverage in fuel procurement by
investigating and devising various arrangements similar to these two agreements.

(1) Conclusion of MOU on coal procurement and generation technologies with Korea
East-West Power Co., Ltd.

In December 2002, the Company concluded the MOU on coal
procurement and generation technologies with Korea East-West
Power Co., Ltd. Coal procurement made by each company is
counted as one of the largest in the respective nations.

The agreement aims to form a friendly relationship between the
two companies and improve the stability, flexibility, and economic
leverage of coal purchases of both companies through mutual
cooperation on coal procurement and generation technologies.
The content of the agreement is as follows:
➀ Mutual accommodation of quantities of coal and the allocation

of coal vessels based on seasonal variation in electricity supply
and demand

➁ Mutual accommodation of quantities of coal and the allocation
of coal vessels when there are disruptions in supply and swings
in demand for coal 

➂ An exchange of information on generation technologies

(2) Conclusion of MOU on LNG procurement with Korea Gas Corporation

In May 2003, the Company signed the MOU on LNG procurement with Korea Gas Corporation.
The main purposes of this arrangement are to develop a friendly relationship between the two companies, prepare crisis

control measures for LNG procurement, and enhance the flexibility and safety of LNG purchases.
The content of the agreement is as follows:

➀ Discussions on the possibility of accommodating LNG by the other party when LNG procurement by one of the parties is
obstructed during an emergency or times of crisis (focused on crisis control)

➁ Discussions on the possibility of exchanging receiving schedules for LNG vessels when an adjustment in deliveries is
necessary because of fluctuating LNG demand

➂ Joint examination on innovative ideas for mutual benefit, such as an LNG contract scheme or shipping scheme
➃ An exchange of information on LNG procurement

The Company will promote cooperation with Korea Gas Corporation within a possible range while continually emphasizing
cooperative relationships with other domestic LNG buyers.

Seoul

REPUBLIC OF KOREA

Millmerran coal-fired thermal
power station.

MOU signing ceremony with Korea
East-West Power Co., Ltd.
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Capital Expenditures
(Consolidated basis)

Construction
¥5.3 billions Other

¥14.8 
billions

Electric power
¥224.0 billions

¥244.3
billions

Capital Expenditures in Electric Power Segment
(Consolidated basis)

Upgrades of various
facilities and equipment

New construction and
expansion of power
transmission,
transformers, and their
related facilities

New construction and
expansion of power
generating units

¥224.0
billions

¥62.6
billions

¥46.7
billions

  ¥24.6
 billions

¥90.1
billions

Electric
power

Nuclear fuel

Financial Review (Consolidated basis)

Operating Results
The Corporate Group’s operating revenues in FY 2002
decreased 6.1% from the preceding fiscal year, to ¥1,593.8
billion ($13,259 million). The main factors behind this
decline were the impact of electricity rate reductions that
took effect in July 2002 and a decrease in orders in the
construction segment. 

Operating expenses dropped 6.4%, to ¥1,393.8 billion
($11,596 million), despite an increase in fuel costs in the
electric power business due to a rise in crude oil prices.
This decline was mainly caused by a drive to increase
efficiency in all areas of business, both the Company’s and
that of its consolidated affiliates and subsidiaries, as well as
a decrease in personnel costs and depreciation. 

Consequently, operating income decreased 4.2%, to
¥199.9 billion ($1,663 million). Income before special item
and income taxes fell 14.9%, to ¥97.6 billion ($812 million).
Net income dropped 11.6%, to ¥61.9 billion ($514 million).

Earnings per share decreased from ¥139.20 to ¥122.70
($1.02) in FY 2002.

FY 2002 results by business segment are as follows.

Electric Power Business
Operating revenues decreased 5.5%, to ¥1,470.8 billion
($12,236 million), due to the impact of rate reductions.
Operating expenses fell 5.8%, to ¥1,285.3 billion ($10,693
million), as personnel expenses and depreciation decreased
while an increase in crude oil prices raised fuel costs. As a
result, operating income slipped 3.6%, to ¥185.5 billion
($1,543 million).

Construction Business
Operating revenues, affected by a shrinking market,
declined 10.0%, to ¥200.5 billion ($1,668 million). Cost-
cutting measures affected operating expenses, which

decreased 10.4%, to ¥194.5 billion ($1,618 million). Thus,
operating income rose 6.4%, to ¥6 billion ($50 million).

Other Businesses
Operating revenues climbed 6.8%, to ¥79.6 billion ($662
million), and operating expenses rose 11.2%, to ¥71.9
billion ($598 million). As a result, operating income
dropped 22.0%, to ¥7.7 billion ($64 million). 

Capital Expenditures
The Corporate Group’s capital expenditures in FY 2002 (not
subject to elimination and adjustment for consolidation)
decreased 14.0%, to ¥244.3 billion ($2,032 million). By
segment, the electric power business accounted for ¥224.0
billion ($1,864 million), the construction business ¥5.3
billion ($44 million), and other businesses ¥14.8 billion
($123 million).

As for the electric power segment, which is our main
business, we pushed forward the development and
introduction of new technologies as well as the
rationalization of designs and construction methods for
building facilities. Also, we reviewed the contents of
construction works and diversified ordering systems for
construction materials. Through these efforts, we were able
to record effective capital expenditures that would meet the
long-term demand trend.

Out of capital outlays for the electric power sector, ¥62.6
billion ($521 million), or 28.0%, was invested in the new
construction and expansion of power generating units, and
¥46.7 billion ($388 million), or 20.8%, was invested in the
new construction and expansion of transmission,
transformer, and related facilities. An investment of ¥24.6
billion ($204 million), or 11.0%, was made in nuclear fuel,
and ¥90.1 billion ($749 million), or 40.2%, was invested in
upgrading various facilities and equipment and surveys.
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(¥ billions)

0-300 200-100 100-200 300 400

(A=B+i+ii+iii+iv)

Cash Flows (Consolidated basis)

(A) FY 2002 term-
end balance

(iv) Increase in C&CE
upon inclusion of
additional subsidiaries
in consolidation

(iii) Cash flows from
financing activities

( ii ) Cash flows from
investing activities

( i ) Cash flows from
operating  activities

( B ) FY 2001 term-end
balance

(A) 79.4

(iv) 3.4

( i ) 364.0

( B ) 79.3

(iii) -161.5

( ii ) -223.7

(A) 79.4

(iv) 3.4

( i ) 364.0

( B ) 97.3

(iii) -161.5

( ii ) -223.7

Financial Position
The valuation of total assets at the end of FY 2002
decreased 2.1%, to ¥4,209.1 billion ($35,018 million), thanks
to our efforts in trimming interest-bearing liabilities to
create a stronger financial structure.

Total shareholders’ equity at FY 2002 year-end rose
3.9%, to ¥842.4 billion ($7,008 million). As a result, the
shareholder’s equity ratio went up from 18.9% to 20.0%. 

Cash Flows
The year-end balance of cash and cash equivalent dropped
¥17.8 billion (an 18.4% decline), to ¥79.4 billion ($661
million), from the FY 2001 year-end balance of ¥97.3 billion.

Cash flows by activity and factors causing changes in FY
2002 are as follows.

Cash flows from Operating Activities
In FY 2002, cash inflows from operating activities dropped
to ¥364.0 billion ($3,028 million), down ¥38.1 billion, or
9.5%, from ¥402.1 billion in the previous fiscal year. The
impact of electricity rate reductions implemented in July
2002 more than offset Tohoku Electric Power’s
companywide efficiency drive, resulting in the drop in cash
inflows from operating activities.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
A total of ¥223.7 billion ($1,861 million) was utilized in
investing activities, which decreased ¥62 billion, or 21.7%,
from ¥285.7 billion in the previous term. This decrease was
caused by the Company’s efforts to hold down capital
investment through the efficient formation and operation of
facilities.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
A total of ¥161.5 billion ($1,344 million) was utilized in
financing activities, resulting in an increase of ¥35.8 billion,
or 28.5%, from ¥125.7 billion in the previous fiscal year. The
main factor behind this increase was the reductions that
were made in interest-bearing liabilities to create a stronger
financial structure

Credit Rating
As of the end of July 2003, credit ratings for long-term
corporate bonds issued by the Company are as follows:

Moody’s Investors Service ..................A1
Standard & Poor’s ................................AA-(Based on publicly 

disclosed information)
Rating and Investment Information....AA+
Japan Credit Rating Agency................AAA (Based on  

publicly disclosed 
information)
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Operating results

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Other (income) expenses, net
Income before special item and income taxes
Special item
Income before income taxes
Income taxes, current
Income taxes, deferred
Minority interests in (losses) earnings of consolidated subsidiaries
Net income

Sources and application of funds

Sources:
Internal funds
External funds:

Bonds
Borrowings

Total

Applications:
Capital expenditures
Debt redemption

Total

Assets and capital

Total assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Common stock
Total shareholders’ equity

¥1,593,832)

1,393,887)

199,945)

83,858)

18,474)

97,612)

286)

97,898)

44,201)

(7,204)

(999)

61,901)

¥   379,758)

159,339)

377,523)

536,862)

916,621)

244,330)

672,290)

916,621)

¥4,209,171)

3,462,408)

251,441)

842,440)

2003 2002 2001

Millions of yen

2000 1999

¥1,697,224)
1,488,518)

208,706)
87,351)
6,703)

114,651)
(754)

113,897)
43,644)
(2,966)
3,221)

69,998)

¥   371,426)

137,410)
373,708)
511,119)
882,545)

284,060)
598,485)
882,545)

¥4,299,782)
3,543,258)

251,441)
810,919)

¥1,716,568)
1,478,292)

238,275)
105,127)

3,059)
130,089)

(926)
129,162)
45,965)

101)
3,449)

79,646)

¥   413,400)

177,152)
310,430)
487,583)
900,983)

273,469)
627,513)
900,983)

¥4,379,005)
3,622,707)

251,441)
787,571)

¥1,577,368)
1,317,566)

259,802)
118,131)

3,667)
138,003)
(97,875)
40,127)
53,276)

(36,477)
1,341)

21,988)

¥   386,925)

148,184)
412,158)
560,342)
947,267)

319,071)
628,196)
947,267)

¥4,331,990)
3,655,211)

251,441)
719,421)

¥1,539,209)
1,343,015)

196,194)
114,442)

2,408)
79,343)

(990)
78,353)
40,711)

(5)
–)

37,646)

–)

–)
–)
–)
–)

–)
–)
–)

¥4,042,796)
3,505,697)

251,441)
659,085)

1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003
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(¥ billions)
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Net Income & Net Income Per Share

0

(¥)
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160

0

Net Income
(left scale)

Net Income Per Share
(right scale)

Five-Year Summary (Consolidated basis)
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31
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Cash flows

Operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:
Net cash used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents upon inclusion of
additional subsidiaries in consolidation

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Plant data

Generating capacity (MW)
(Number of plants):

Hydroelectric

Thermal

Nuclear

Total

Substation capacity (MVA)
Transmission lines (km)
Distribution lines (km)

Other data

Number of employees

¥364,010)

(223,765)

(161,583)

3,458)

79,480)

2,493)

(222)

12,151)

(18)

2,174)

(1)

16,817)

(241)

57,667)

14,737)

138,323)

18,678)

2003 2002 2001

Millions of yen

2000 1999

¥402,114)

(285,773)

(125,754)

–)
97,361)

2,486)
(219)

12,151)
(18)

2,174)
(1)

16,810)
(238)

56,693)
14,841)

137,393)

19,467)

¥390,949)

(218,135)

(165,673)

–)
106,774)

2,476)
(218)

12,130)
(18)

1,349)
(1)

15,955)
(237)

56,526)
14,734)

136,555)

20,709)

¥431,250)

(340,270)

(101,167)

17,132)
99,633)

2,455)
(217)

12,130)
(18)

1,349)
(1)

15,933)
(236)

56,032)
14,691)

135,467)

16,515)

–)

–)

–)

–)
–)

–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)
–)

–)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003
0

2,000

3,000

4,000

(¥ billions)
5,000

Total Assets

1,000

(%)   
  22.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

20.0

12.0
1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003

Shareholders´ Equity Ratio
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Operating results

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Other (income) expenses, net
Income before special item and income taxes
Special item
Income before income taxes
Income taxes, current
Income taxes, deferred
Net income

Sources and application of funds

Sources:
Internal funds
External funds:
Bonds
Borrowings

Total

Applications:
Capital expenditures
Debt redemption

Total

Assets and capital

Total assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Common stock
Total shareholders’ equity

Common stock data:
Number of Shareholders
Number of Share issued (thousands)

Price range (yen):
High
Low

★Tokyo Stock Exchange

¥1,479,052)

1,294,355)

184,696)

80,633)

10,567)

93,495)

293)

93,788)

40,738)

(6,664)

59,715)

¥   328,418)

159,339)

361,000)

520,339)

848,757)

219,543)

629,213)

848,757)

¥3,897,981)

3,258,601)

251,441)

790,054)

253,117)

502,883)

¥       1,808)

1,525)

2003 2002 2001

Millions of yen

2000 1999

¥1,556,844)
1,365,185)

191,658)
83,683)
9,712)

98,263)
(758)

97,504)
37,986)
(2,794)
62,312)

¥   328,547)

139,410)
333,900)
473,310)
801,857)

255,999)
545,858)
801,857)

¥3,970,773)
3,337,860)

251,441)
760,225)

254,636)
502,883)

¥       2,260)
1,557)

¥1,570,721)
1,349,066)

221,655)
100,642)

3,997)
117,015)

(938)
116,076)
40,910)

1,275)
73,890)

¥   377,767)

179,253)
268,992)
448,245)
826,012)

255,069)
570,943)
826,012)

¥4,028,446)
3,414,536)

251,441)
742,925)

256,638)
502,883)

¥       1,740)
1,240)

¥1,539,606)
1,289,642)

249,964)
113,119)
98,687)
38,156)

(696)
37,460)
50,480)

(36,474)
23,454)

¥   365,743)

149,384)
362,000)
511,384)
877,127)

304,235)
572,892)
877,127)

¥4,070,307)
3,446,556)

251,441)
681,226)

253,280)
502,883)

¥       1,947)
1,230)

¥1,523,186)
1,331,399)

191,786)
113,309)

3,872)
74,603)

(975)
73,628)
38,073)

–)
35,555)

¥   365,718)

179,148)
352,533)
531,681)
897,399)

378,861)
518,538)
897,399)

¥3,958,203)
3,447,174)

251,441)
619,449)

237,252)
502,883)

¥       2,195)
1,800)

Five-Year Summary(Non-Consolidated basis)
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. 
Years ended March 31

1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003
0

800

1,200

1,600

(¥ billions)
2,000

Operating Revenues

400

(¥ billions)
100

1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003

20

40

60

80

Net Income & Net Income Per Share

0

(¥)
200

40

80

120

160

0

Net Income
(left scale)

Net Income Per Share
(right scale)

1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003
0

200

300

400

(¥ billions)
500

Capital Expenditures

100

★



25

Electric power sales (millions of kWh)

Residential
Commercial and industrial:

Commercial
Small industrial
Large industrial
Other

Total
Deregulated segment

★1

Total electric power sales

Peak load (MW)

Plant data

Plant data
Generating capacity (MW)
(Number of plants):

Hydroelectric

Thermal

Nuclear

Total

Substation capacity (MVA)
Transmission lines (km)
Distribution lines (km)

Other data

Number of customers (Excluding the deregulated segment):
Residential
Commercial and industrial 

Total
Number of employees 

★

★Not including on loan or leave.

22,914)

13,814)

11,539)

7,521)

1,678)

34,552)

57,466)

16,789)

74,255)

14,489)

2,423)

(211)

11,451)

(17)

2,174)

(1)

16,048)

(229)

57,667)

14,737)

138,323)

6,526,632)

1,079,776)

7,606,408)

12,077)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

22,229)

13,500)
11,419)

7,468)
1,711)

34,098)
★2      56,327)

16,173)
72,500)

14,125)

2,451)
(211)

11,451)
(17)

2,174)
(1)

16,076)
(229)

56,693)
14,841)

137,393)

6,472,751)
1,094,738)
7,567,489)

12,337)

22,429)

13,579)
11,914)
7,925)
1,787)

35,205)
★2      57,634)

16,880)
74,514)

14,700)

2,442)
(210)

11,429)
(17)

1,349)
(1)

15,220)
(228)

56,526)
14,734)

136,555)

6,416,972)
1,105,855)
7,522,827)

13,159)

21,843)

13,798)
11,603)
22,777)
1,783)

49,961)
★2      71,804)

–)
71,804)

14,430)

2,431)
(210)

11,429)
(17)

1,349)
(1)

15,209)
(228)

56,032)
14,691)

135,467)

6,347,386)
1,115,819)
7,463,205)

13,729)

20,993)

13,200)
11,224)
21,904)

1,736)
48,064)
69,057)

–)
69,057)

13,590)

2,435)
(212)

10,624)
(17)

1,349)
(1)

14,408)
(230)

52,732)
14,503)

134,151)

6,272,291)
1,128,673)
7,400,964)

14,673)

★1 Customers who fall within the scope of the deregulated segment, such as Extra High Voltage customers whose
contract demands are at least 2,000 kW and use a 20,000 volt supply system.

★2 Excluding the deregulated segment.

(%)   
  22.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

20.0

12.0
1999　　2000　　2001　　2002　　2003

Shareholders´ Equity Ratio
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0
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4,000
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Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 3)
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, net

Nuclear fuel:

Loaded nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel under processing

Long-term investments (Note 4)

Deferred income taxes  (Note 9)
Deferred income taxes on revaluation surplus

Other assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 
Notes receivable and amounts due from customers, 

less allowance for uncollectible receivables (Note 5)
Deferred income taxes (Note 9)
Other current assets (Note 4)

Total current assets

Total assets

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

¥ 7,671,489)

(4,209,081)

3,462,408)

125,201)

62,006)

131,071)

1,550)

132,621)

161,422)

79,480)

103,561)

16,653)

65,814)

265,511)

¥ 4,209,171)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥ 7,527,568)
(3,984,309)
3,543,258)

111,297)

74,211)

126,923)
1,602)

128,525)

152,049)

97,361)

111,170)
11,024)
70,883)

290,440)

¥ 4,299,782)

$ 63,822,703)

(35,017,312)

28,805,391)

1,041,605)

515,856)

1,090,440)

12,895)

1,103,336)

1,342,945)

661,231)

861,572)

138,544)

547,537)

2,208,910)

$ 35,018,061)

26

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2003 and 2002
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Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Long-term debt (Note 6)

Accrued retirement benefits (Note 8)

Reserve for reprocessing irradiated nuclear fuel (Note 7)

Reserve for decommissioning nuclear power units

Deferred income taxes (Note 9)

Current liabilities: 

Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6)
Notes and accounts payable
Accrued income taxes (Note 9)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Reserve for fluctuation in water levels

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries

Contingent liabilities  (Note 14)

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, without par value:
Authorized – 1,000,000,000 shares
Issued      –    502,882,585 shares

Capital surplus
Retained earnings (Notes 10 and 18)
Revaluation surplus
Net unrealized holding gain on securities (Note 4)
Treasury stock, at cost; 287,530 shares in 2003
and 69,305 shares in 2002

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

¥2,273,234)

228,152)

83,130)

28,898)

266)

127,609)

310,992)

79,181)

22,377)

163,521)

703,683)

6,806)

42,557)

251,441)

26,497)

564,168)

(1,069)

1,877)

(475)

842,440)

¥4,209,171)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥2,394,623)

224,736)

72,153)

25,579)

244)

131,979)

319,170)

91,176)

22,082)

155,676)

720,085)

7,092)

44,348)

251,441)

26,497)

527,801)

(1,047)
6,318)

(92)
810,919)

¥4,299,782)

$18,912,096)

1,898,103)

691,597)

240,415)

2,212)

1,061,638)

2,587,287)

658,743)

186,164)

1,360,407)

5,854,267)

56,622)

354,051)

2,091,855)

220,440)

4,693,577)

(8,893)

15,615)

(3,951)

7,008,652)

$35,018,061)
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Operating revenues:

Electric power
Other

Operating expenses:

Electric power (Note 11)
Other

Operating income

Other expenses:

Other expenses:
Interest expense
Other, net

Income before special item and income taxes

Special item:

(Reversal of) provision for reserve for fluctuation in water levels
Income before income taxes

Income taxes (Note 9):
Current
Deferred

Minority interests in (losses) earnings of consolidated subsidiaries

Net income (Note 15)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

¥1,469,806)

124,026)

1,593,832)

1,277,092)

116,795)

1,393,887)

199,945)

83,858)

18,474)

102,332)

97,612)

(286)

97,898)

44,201)

(7,204)

36,996)

(999)

¥     61,901)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥1,555,971)
141,253)

1,697,224)

1,355,155)
133,362)

1,488,518)
208,706)

87,351)
6,703)

94,054)
114,651)

754)
113,897)

43,644)
(2,966)
40,677)

3,221)

¥     69,998)

$12,228,003)

1,031,830)

13,259,833)

10,624,725)

971,672)

11,596,397)

1,663,435)

697,653)

153,693)

851,347)

812,079)

(2,379)

814,459)

367,728)

(59,933)

307,787)

(8,311)

$     514,983)

Consolidated Statements of Income
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002
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Number of
shares of
common

stock

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002

Balance at March 31, 2001

Bonuses to directors and corporate 
auditors

Cash dividends paid
Net income for the year ended

March 31, 2002
Net change during the year

Balance at March 31, 2002

Bonuses to directors and corporate 
auditors

Cash dividends paid
Decrease in retained earnings 

resulting from inclusion of
consolidated subsidiaries

Reversal of revaluation surplus
Net income for the year ended 

March 31, 2003
Net change during the year

Balance at March 31, 2003

Balance at March 31, 2002

Bonuses to directors and corporate 
auditors

Cash dividends paid
Decrease in retained earnings 

resulting from inclusion of
consolidated subsidiaries

Reversal of revaluation surplus
Net income for the year ended 

March 31, 2003
Net change during the year

Balance at March 31, 2003

502,882,585)

502,882,585)

502,882,585)

Retained
earnings

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Revaluation
surplus

Net unrealized
holding gain
on securities

Treasury
stock at cost

Millions of yen

¥251,441)

251,441)

¥251,441)

$2,091,855)

$2,091,855)

¥26,497)

26,497)

¥26,497)

$220,440)

$220,440)

¥495,762)

(245)
(37,714)

69,998)

527,801)

(218)

(25,139)

(175)

(1)

61,901)

¥564,168)

$4,391,023)

(1,813)

(209,143)

(1,455)

(8)

514,983)

$4,693,577)

¥        –)

(1,047)
(1,047)

(22)

¥(1,069)

$(8,710)

(183)

$(8,893)

¥13,886)

(7,567)
6,318)

(4,441)

¥  1,877)

$ 52,562)

(36,946)

$ 15,615)

¥  (16)

(75)
(92)

(383)

¥(475)

$   (765)

(3,186)

$(3,951)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Revaluation
surplus

Net unrealized
holding gain
on securities

Treasury
stock at cost



Operating activities

Income before income taxes
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Provision for accrued retirement benefits
Loss on sales and disposal of property, plant and 

equipment
Provision for reserve for reprocessing of irradiated 

nuclear fuel
Provision for reserve for decommissioning of nuclear

power units
(Reversal of) provision for reserve for fluctuation in water

levels
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Amounts due from customers
Accounts payable
Other operating assets and liabilities

Subtotal
Interest and dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Contributions received in aid of construction
Increase in investments and advances
Change in other assets and liabilities

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term loans and issuance of bonds
Repayment or redemption of long-term loans and bonds
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings and 

commercial paper
Cash dividends
Other

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Increase in cash and cash equivalents upon inclusion of

additional subsidiaries in consolidation
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002

¥  97,898)

283,479)

3,415)

16,377)

10,977)

3,318)

(286)

(785)

83,858)

(31,466)

(10,505)

31,601)

487,884)

696)

(80,781)

(43,788)

364,010)

(239,491)

3,245)

(17,998)

30,479)

(223,765)

272,617)

(390,586)

(17,380)

(25,134)

(1,099)

(161,583)

(21,339)

97,361)

3,458)

¥  79,480)

2003

$    814,459)

2,358,394)

28,410)

136,247)

91,322)

27,603)

(2,379)

(6,530)

697,653)

(261,780)

(87,396)

262,903)

4,058,935)

5,790)

(672,054)

(364,292)

3,028,369)

(1,992,437)

26,996)

(149,733)

253,569)

(1,861,605)

2,268,028)

(3,249,467)

(144,592)

(209,101)

(9,143)

(1,344,284)

(177,529)

809,991)

28,768)

$    661,231)

20032002
Millions of yen

¥113,897)

318,564)
1,028)

14,735)

9,085)

2,109)

754)
(1,647)
87,351)

(16,318)
(8,076)
4,238)

525,722)
1,425)

(85,803)
(39,229)
402,114)

(288,464)
3,209)

(18,106)
17,587)

(285,773)

203,679)
(298,776)

7,800)
(37,670)

(786)
(125,754)

(9,413)
106,774)

–)
¥  97,361)

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2003

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting   
Policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Tohoku Electric Power Company, Incorporated (the
“Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries have been
compiled from the consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Company as required by the Securities and
Exchange Law of Japan and are prepared on the basis of
accounting principles and practices generally accepted and
applied in Japan, which differ in certain respects from the
application and disclosure requirements of International
Accounting Standards.

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial
statements include information which is not required under
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is
presented herein as additional information.

As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law,
amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted.
As a result, the totals shown in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements (both in yen and U.S.
dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sum of the
individual amounts.

(b) Principles of consolidation and accounting for
investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and
affiliates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and significant
companies controlled directly or indirectly by the Company.
Companies over which the Company exercises significant
influence in terms of their operating and financial policies
have been included in the consolidated financial statements
on an equity basis.  All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The differences, not significant in amount, between the
cost and the underlying net equity of investments in
consolidated subsidiaries at the dates of acquisition are, as
a rule, amortized over a period of five years.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is generally stated at cost.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
computed by the declining-balance method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets.  Significant
renewals and additions are capitalized at cost.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to income when
incurred.

(d) Nuclear fuel
Nuclear fuel is stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
The amortization of loaded nuclear fuel is computed based
on the proportion of current heat production to the total
heat production estimated over the life of the nuclear fuel.

(e) Marketable and investment securities
Marketable and investment securities are classified into
three categories: trading, held-to-maturity or other
securities.  Trading securities are carried at fair value and
held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost.

Marketable securities classified as other securities are
carried at fair value with changes in unrealized holding
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included
directly in shareholders’ equity.  Non-marketable securities
classified as other securities are carried at cost.  Cost of
securities sold is determined by the moving average
method.

(f) Fuel and supplies
Fuel (oil, gas and coal) and supplies are stated at cost
determined by the average method.

(g) Cash equivalents
All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased are considered cash
equivalents.

(h) Employees’ retirement benefits
Accrued retirement benefits for employees have been
provided mainly at an amount calculated based on the
retirement benefit obligation and the fair value of the
pension plan assets at the year end, as adjusted for the
unrecognized actuarial gain or loss and unrecognized prior
service cost.

The retirement benefit obligation is attributed to each
period by the straight-line method over the estimated
remaining years of service of the eligible employees.  Prior
service cost is expensed as incurred.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized in the year
following the year in which the gain or loss is recognized
primarily by the straight-line method over periods
(principally 1 year through 10 years) which are shorter than
the average remaining years of service of the employees
participating in the plan.

(i) Reserve for decommissioning nuclear power units
The Company, as required by a regulatory authority which
is an advisory body to the Ministry of Economy, Trade and
Industry, records a reserve for decommissioning nuclear
power units.  Provision is made for the cost of future
disposition of nuclear power units in proportion to the ratio
of their current generation of electric power to the
estimated total generation of electric power over the life of
each unit.

(j) Reserve for fluctuation in water levels
To offset fluctuations in income caused by varying water
levels, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are
required under the Electric Utility Law to record a reserve
for fluctuation in water levels.

(k) Leases
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries lease
certain equipment under noncancelable lease agreements
referred to as finance leases.  Finance leases other than
those which transfer the ownership of the leased property
to the lessee are accounted for as operating leases.

(l) Income taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognized in
the consolidated financial statements with respect to the
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differences between financial reporting and the tax bases
of the assets and liabilities, and were measured using the
enacted tax rates and laws which will be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse.

(m) Foreign currency translation
All monetary assets and liabilities, both short-term and
long-term, denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into yen at the exchange rates prevailing as of
the fiscal year end, and the resulting gain or loss is
included in income.

(n) Derivatives and hedging transactions
The Company has entered into various derivatives
transactions in order to manage certain risks arising from
adverse fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates.  Derivatives are carried at fair value with
any changes in unrealized gain or loss charged or credited
to operations, except for those which meet the criteria for
deferral hedge accounting under which unrealized gain or
loss is deferred as an asset or a liability.  Receivables and
payables hedged by qualified derivatives are translated at
the corresponding foreign exchange contract rates.

(o) Appropriation of retained earnings
Under the Commercial Code, the appropriation of retained
earnings with respect to a given financial year is made by
resolution of the shareholders at a general meeting held
subsequent to the close of the financial year.  The accounts
for that year do not, therefore, reflect such appropriations.
See Note 19.

(p) Treasury stock and reduction of legal reserves
Effective April 1, 2002, the Company and its domestic
consolidated subsidiaries adopted a new accounting
standard for treasury stock and reduction of legal reserves.
The effect of the adoption of this new standard was
immaterial for the year ended March 31, 2003.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts
Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the
convenience of the reader.  The rate of ¥120.20 = U.S.$1.00,
the approximate rate of exchange on March 31, 2003, has
been used in translation.  The inclusion of such amounts is
not intended to imply that yen have been or could be
readily converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at that
or any other rate.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment at March 31, 2003 and 2002
is summarized as follows:

2003 2002 2003

Hydro power plant ¥   508,839 ¥   490,327 $  4,233,269

Thermal power plant 1,769,853 1,767,655 14,724,234

Nuclear power plant 894,287 895,137 7,439,991

Transmission plant 1,301,538 1,288,510 10,828,103

Transformation plant 703,071 694,469 5,849,176

Distribution plant 1,159,320 1,137,047 9,644,925

General plant 425,145 405,552 3,536,980

Other 480,303 459,898 3,995,865

7,242,360 7,138,598 60,252,579

Construction work in 

progress 429,129 388,969 3,570,124

Total ¥7,671,489 ¥7,527,568 $63,822,703

Contributions in aid of construction which were deducted
from the cost of property, plant and equipment at March
31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002 2003

¥160,954 ¥157,214 $1,339,051

4.  Marketable Securities and Investment 
Securities

Held-to-maturity securities for which market prices were
available at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2003 

Unrealized gain:

Bonds ¥3 ¥3 ¥0

Year ended March 31, 2002 

Unrealized gain:

Bonds ¥      3 ¥       3 ¥0

Discounted bank

debentures 1,599 1,599 0

Unrealized loss:

Discounted bank

debentures 1,919 1,918 (1)

Total ¥3,521 ¥3,520 ¥(0)

Year ended March 31, 2003

Unrealized gain:

Bonds $24 $24 $0

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Balance
sheet

amount
Unrealized
gain (loss)

Market
value

Balance
sheet

amount
Unrealized
gain(loss)

Market
value

Millions of yen

Balance
sheet

amount
Unrealized
gain (loss)

Market
value

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars



33

Other securities for which market prices were available at
March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2003 

Unrealized gain:

Stock ¥3,338 ¥  7,859 ¥4,521

Unrealized loss:

Stock 4,176 2,600 (1,576)

Total ¥7,515 ¥10,459 ¥2,944

Year ended March 31, 2002 

Unrealized gain:

Stock ¥6,134 ¥16,273 ¥10,139

Unrealized loss:

Stock 805 551 (253)

Total ¥6,939 ¥16,824 ¥  9,885

Year ended March 31, 2003 

Unrealized gain:

Stock $27,770 $65,382 $37,612

Unrealized loss:

Stock 34,742 21,630 (13,111)

Total $62,520 $87,013 $24,492

Investment securities stated at cost at March 31, 2003 and

2002 were as follows:

2003 2002 2003

Held-to-maturity:

Municipal bonds ¥  1,246 ¥  1,351 $  10,366

Bonds – 10 –

Other securities:

Unlisted stock 36,484 29,851 303,527

The redemption schedule for securities with maturity dates
classified as other securities and held-to-maturity debt
securities at March 31, 2003 and 2002 is summarized as
follows:

At March 31, 2003

Municipal bonds ¥73 ¥295 ¥354 ¥522

Bonds – 3 – –

Total ¥73 ¥298 ¥354 ¥522

Cost
Unrealized
gain (loss)

Balance
sheet

amount

Millions of yen
At March 31, 2002

Municipal bonds ¥1,093 ¥70 ¥79 ¥108

Discounted bank

debentures 3,518 – – –

Bonds – 13 – –

Total ¥4,611 ¥83 ¥79 ¥108

At March 31, 2003

Municipal bonds $607 $2,454 $2,945 $4,342

Bonds – 24 – –

Total $607 $2,479 $2,945 $4,342

5.  Notes Receivable and Amounts Due from  
Customers

Notes receivable and amounts due from customers at
March 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

2003 2002 2003

Notes receivable and

amounts due from

customers ¥104,789 ¥112,809 $871,788

Less allowance for

uncollectible

receivables (1,228) (1,638) (10,216)

Total ¥103,561 ¥111,170 $861,572

Millions of yen

Due after
five years
through 

ten years

Due after 
one year 
through 

five years
Due in one
year or less

Due after
ten years

Millions of yen

Due after
five years
through 

ten years

Due after 
one year 
through 

five years
Due in one
year or less

Due after
ten years

Cost
Unrealized
gain (loss)

Balance
sheet

amount

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Cost
Unrealized
gain (loss)

Balance
sheet

amount

Millions of yen

Due after
five years
through 

ten years

Due after 
one year
through 

five years
Due in one
year or less

Due after
ten years

Thousands of U.S. dollars
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6.  Short-Term Borrowings and 
Long-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings are principally secured.  The related
weighted average interest rates for the years ended March
31, 2003 and 2002 were approximately 0.31% and 0.39%,
respectively.

At March 31, 2003 and 2002, long-term debt consisted
of the following:

2003 2002 2003

Bonds in yen due

through 2018 ¥1,294,200 ¥1,354,200 $10,767,054

6.5% bonds in foreign

currencies due 2002 – 48,320 –

Loans from banks and

other financial

institutions due

through 2022 974,533 980,194 8,107,595

Other 315,494 331,078 2,624,742

Subtotal 2,584,227 2,713,793 21,499,392

Less current portion (310,992) (319,170) (2,587,287)

Total ¥2,273,234 ¥2,394,623 $18,912,096

Long-term debt payments fall due subsequent to March 31,
2003 as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2004 ¥   310,992 $  2,587,287

2005 192,684 1,603,028

2006 287,105 2,388,560

2007 and thereafter 1,793,444 14,920,499

Total ¥2,584,227 $21,499,392

All assets of the Company are subject to certain statutory
preferential rights established to secure the bonds and
loans from The Development Bank of Japan.

Certain of the agreements relating to long-term debt
stipulate that the Company is required to submit proposals
for the appropriation of retained earnings and to report
other significant matters, if requested by the lenders, for
their review and approval prior to presentation to the
shareholders.  No such requests have ever been made.

Secured long-term debt at March 31, 2003 was as
follows:

Bonds ¥1,294,200 $10,767,054

Long-term loans 448,551 3,731,705

Millions of yen

Millions of
yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of
yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

The assets of certain consolidated subsidiaries pledged as
collateral for the above long-term debt at March 31, 2003
were as follows:

Land ¥ 10,737 $  89,326

Buildings 39,172 325,890

Machinery and equipment 44,505 370,257

Other 4,536 37,737

Total ¥ 98,952 $823,227

7. Reserve for Reprocessing Irradiated   
Nuclear Fuel

The annual reserve for reprocessing irradiated nuclear fuel
is provided at 60% of the amount which would be required
to reprocess all the nuclear fuel irradiated plus a portion of
the nuclear fuel under irradiation.

8. Retirement Benefit Plans
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries had defined
benefit plans, including funded non-contributory tax-
qualified retirement pension plans and a lump-sum
retirement benefits plan, which together cover substantially
all full-time employees who meet certain eligibility
requirements.  The Company has the option to pay
employees additional retirement benefits on retirement.

The following table sets forth the funded and accrued
status of the plans, and the amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2003 and 2002 for
the Company’s and the consolidated subsidiaries’ defined
benefit plans:

2003 2002 2003

Retirement benefit

obligation ¥(460,921) ¥(457,236) $(3,834,617)

Plan assets at fair value 186,372 205,330 1,550,515

Unfunded retirement

benefit obligation (274,548) (251,905) (2,284,093)

Unrecognized actuarial

gain or loss 46,428 27,235 386,256

Unrecognized prior

service cost (31) (66) (257)

Accrued retirement

benefits ¥(228,152) ¥(224,736) $(1,898,103)

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of
yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars



9. Income Taxes
The Company and consolidated subsidiaries are subjected
to several taxes based on earnings, which, in the aggregate,
resulted in a statutory tax rate of approximately 36% for
both 2003 and 2002.  Other major consolidated subsidiaries
are subjected to several taxes based on earnings, which, in
the aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax rate of
approximately 42% for both 2003 and 2002.

The significant components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002 2003

Current deferred tax

assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued retirement

benefits ¥  70,744 ¥  64,141 $   588,552

Deferred charges 18,700 22,038 155,574

Unrealized gain 22,800 24,483 189,683

Other 44,977 39,052 374,184

157,222 149,715 1,308,003

Valuation allowance (5,483) (5,911) (45,615)

Total deferred tax assets 151,739 143,804 1,262,387

Deferred tax liabilities:

Valuation differences

on other securities (1,585) (3,667) (13,186)

Other (2,694) (2,432) (22,412)

Total deferred tax

liabilities (4,280) (6,100) (35,607)

Net deferred tax assets ¥147,458 ¥137,703 $1,226,772

The effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statement of income for the year ended March
31, 2003 differs from the statutory tax rate for the following
reasons:

2003

Statutory tax rate 35.97%

Effect of:

Unrealized gain 1.30%

Other, net 0.52%

Effective tax rate 37.79%

The differences between the effective tax rates reflected in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income for
the year ended March 31, 2002 and the statutory tax rate
were immaterial.
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The components of retirement benefit expenses for the
years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 are outlined as
follows:

2003 2002 2003

Service cost ¥17,489 ¥17,693 $145,499

Interest cost 11,397 11,445 94,816

Expected return on

plan assets (4,991) (5,060) (41,522)

Amortization of

actuarial gain or loss 9,695 5,826 80,657

Amortization of prior

service cost 1,051 7,866 8,743

Additional retirement

allowance 7,792 11,416 64,825

Total ¥42,434 ¥49,188 $353,028

The principal assumptions used in determining the
retirement benefit obligation and other components of the
Company’s and the consolidated subsidiaries’ plans are
shown below:

2003 2002

Discount rates 2.5% ~ 3.0% 2.5% ~ 3.0%

Expected rate of
return on plan
assets 1.5% ~ 2.5% 2.5%

Period for
recognition of
prior service cost 1 year ~ 2 years 1 year ~ 2 years

Period for
recognition of
actuarial gain or
loss 1 year ~ 10 years 1 year ~ 10 years

Method of
allocation of
estimated
retirement
benefits Equally over the period Equally over the period

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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10. Retained Earnings
On October 1, 2001, an amendment (the “Amendment”) to
the Commercial Code of Japan (the “Code”) became
effective.  The Amendment eliminates the stated par value
of the Company's outstanding shares, which resulted in all
outstanding shares having no par value as of October 1,
2001.  The Amendment also provides that all share
issuances after September 30, 2001 will be of shares with
no par value.  Prior to the date on which the Amendment
became effective, the Company's shares had a par value of
¥500 per share.

The Code provides that an amount equal to at least 10%
of the amounts to be disbursed as distributions of earnings
be appropriated to the legal reserve until the sum of the
legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of
the common stock account.  The Code also stipulates that,
to the extent that the sum of the additional paid-in capital
account and the legal reserve exceeds 25% of the common
stock account, the amount of any such excess is available
for appropriation by resolution of the shareholders.

The legal reserves of the consolidated subsidiaries are
included in retained earnings in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

11. Operating Expenses
Operating expenses in the electricity business for the years
ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002 2003

Personnel ¥   163,046 ¥   184,788 $  1,356,455

Fuel 236,613 222,109 1,968,494

Purchased power 199,375 228,744 1,658,693

Maintenance 165,915 164,016 1,380,324

Depreciation 247,328 286,465 2,057,637

Taxes other than

income taxes 90,404 93,039 752,113

Subcontracting fees 41,609 45,195 346,164

Other 132,797 130,795 1,104,800

Total ¥1,277,092 ¥1,355,155 $10,624,725

12. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses for the years ended
March 31, 2003 and 2002 were ¥10,705 million ($89,059
thousand) and ¥11,513 million, respectively.

13. Leases
The following pro forma amounts represent the acquisition
costs, accumulated depreciation and net book value of the
leased machinery and equipment at March 31, 2003 and
2002, which would have been reflected in the balance
sheets if finance lease accounting had been applied to the
finance leases currently accounted for as operating leases:

2003 2002 2003

Acquisition costs ¥23,287 ¥27,294 $193,735

Accumulated

depreciation 13,636 14,489 113,444

Net book value ¥  9,650 ¥12,805 $  80,282

For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, lease
payments relating to finance leases accounted for as
operating leases amounted to ¥4,886 million ($40,648
thousand) and ¥5,620 million, respectively, which equaled
the depreciation expense of the leased assets computed by
the straight-line method over the respective lease terms.

Future minimum lease payments (including the interest
portion thereon) subsequent to March 31, 2003 for finance
leases accounted for as operating leases are summarized as
follows:

2004 ¥4,184 $34,808

2005 and thereafter 5,466 45,474

Total ¥9,650 $80,282

The following amounts represent the acquisition costs,
accumulated depreciation and net book value of the leased
assets relating to finance leases accounted for as operating
leases at March 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002 2003

Acquisition costs ¥13 ¥26 $108

Accumulated

depreciation 10 18 83

Net book value ¥ 3 ¥ 7 $ 24

For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, lease
revenues relating to finance leases accounted for as
operating leases amounted to ¥4 million ($33 thousand)
and ¥11 million, respectively.

For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002,
depreciation of assets leased under finance leases
accounted for as operating leases amounted to ¥1 million
($8 thousand) and ¥2 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease revenues (including the interest
portion thereon) subsequent to March 31, 2003 for finance
leases accounted for as operating leases are summarized as
follows: 

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yenYear ending March 31,
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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2004 ¥4 $33

2005 and thereafter 2 16

Total ¥6 $49

14. Contingent Liabilities
At March 31, 2003, the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries were contingently liable as co-guarantors of
loans of other companies, primarily in connection with the
procurement of fuel, in the amount of ¥137,993 million
($1,148,028 thousand), and as guarantors of employees’
housing loans, in the amount of ¥3,628 million ($30,183
thousand).

At March 31, 2003, the Company assigned to a bank its
obligation to make payments of ¥266,905 million
($2,220,507 thousand) in the aggregate plus interest on the
principal of its bonds due through 2006 at rates ranging
from 4.85% to 6.90%.  In this connection, the Company
made a deposit with the bank in fulfillment of the related
obligation.  The deposit and the bonds have thus been
excluded from the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet at March 31, 2003.

15. Amounts Per Share
The amounts per share for the years ended March 31, 2003
and 2002 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2003 2002 2003

Net income:

Basic ¥ 122.70 ¥139.20 $ 1.020

Diluted – 138.06 –

Cash dividends

applicable to the year 50.00 50.00 0.415

At March 31, 2003 2002 2003

Net assets ¥1,675.76 ¥1,612.76 $13.941

Until the year ended March 31, 2002, basic net income per
share was computed based on the net income reported in
the consolidated statements of income and the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the year, diluted net income per share is computed
based on the net income reported in the consolidated
statements of income and the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the year
assuming full conversion of convertible bonds, and
amounts per share of net assets were computed based on
the net assets reported in the consolidated balance sheets
and the number of shares of common stock outstanding at
each balance sheet date.

In accordance with a new accounting standard for
earnings per share which became effective April 1, 2002,
basic net income per share for the year ended March 31,
2003 was computed based on the net income available for
distribution to shareholders of common stock and the
weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the year, diluted net income per share is
computed based on the net income available for

Millions of yenYear ending March 31,
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

U.S. dollarsYen

U.S. dollarsYen

distribution to the shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
year assuming full conversion of convertible bonds, and
amounts per share of net assets at March 31, 2003 was
computed based on the net assets available for distribution
to the shareholders and the number of shares of common
stock outstanding at the year end.  If the new method of
computation had been followed for the year ended March
31, 2002, basic and diluted net income per share and
amounts per share of net assets would have been ¥138.76
($1.154), ¥137.63 ($1.145) and ¥1,612.29 ($13.413),
respectively.

16. Derivatives
(1) The Company utilizes forward foreign exchange

contracts solely in order to hedge against the risk of
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates and to
stabilize its future cash flows relating to debts
denominated in foreign currencies relating to its
operations.

The Company also utilizes currency swaps for the
purpose of hedging its exposure to adverse fluctuation
in foreign exchange rates and to manage its future cash
flows relating to interest payments on bonds
denominated in foreign currencies.

The Company also utilizes interest-rate swap to
hedge its exposure to adverse fluctuation in interest
rates and to manage its future cash flows relating to
principal and interest payments on bonds.

The certain consolidated subsidiary also utilizes
weather derivatives for the purpose of hedging its
electric power business risk which fluctuates according
to wind power changes.

(2) The Company has entered into various derivatives
transactions solely in order to hedge against certain
risks in compliance with its internal policies.  The
Company has not and does not utilize derivatives for
speculative trading purposes.

(3) The Company is exposed to the risk of credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparties to these
derivatives positions, but considers the risk of any such
loss to be minimal because the Company enters into
derivatives transactions only with financial institutions
which have high credit ratings.

(4) The Company enters into, monitors and manages its
derivatives positions based on its own internal policies.
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17. Segment Information
The segment information of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 is
summarized as follows:

Net sales:

(1) Net sales to outside customers ¥1,469,806 ¥  89,430 ¥  34,596 ¥1,593,832 ¥      – ¥1,593,832

(2) Net inter-segment sales 1,036 111,166 45,092 157,295 (157,295) –

Total 1,470,842 200,596 79,688 1,751,128 (157,295) 1,593,832

Operating costs and expenses 1,285,333 194,582 71,937 1,551,853 (157,965) 1,393,887

Operating income ¥   185,509 ¥    6,014 ¥    7,751 ¥   199,275 ¥ 669 ¥ 199,945

Assets ¥3,899,830 ¥213,961 ¥203,368 ¥4,317,160 ¥(107,988) ¥4,209,171

Depreciation ¥   263,342 ¥    3,282 ¥  21,233 ¥   287,859 ¥    (4,380) ¥ 283,479

Capital expenditures ¥   224,079 ¥    5,383 ¥  14,867 ¥   244,330 ¥    (4,136) ¥ 240,194

Consolidated
total

Eliminations of
inter-segment
transactions

and corporateTotalOther

Construc-
tion

business

Electric
utility

business

Net sales:

(1) Net sales to outside customers ¥1,555,971 ¥110,701 ¥  30,551 ¥1,697,224 ¥  – ¥1,697,224

(2) Net inter-segment sales 919 112,153 44,063 157,136 (157,136) –

Total 1,556,890 222,855 74,614 1,854,360 (157,136) 1,697,224

Operating costs and expenses 1,364,391 217,204 64,675 1,646,271 (157,753) 1,488,518

Operating income ¥   192,499 ¥    5,650 ¥    9,938 ¥   208,089 ¥   617 ¥ 208,706

Assets ¥3,974,822 ¥224,669 ¥191,942 ¥4,391,434 ¥ (91,652) ¥4,299,782

Depreciation ¥   301,325 ¥    3,184 ¥  18,409 ¥   322,919 ¥   (4,355) ¥   318,564

Capital expenditures ¥   266,067 ¥    4,190 ¥  13,802 ¥   284,060 ¥   (4,112) ¥   279,948

Net sales:

(1) Net sales to outside customers $12,228,003 $   744,009 $   287,820 $13,259,833 $        – $13,259,833

(2) Net inter-segment sales 8,618 924,841 375,141 1,308,610 (1,308,610) –

Total 12,236,622 1,668,851 662,961 14,568,452 (1,308,610) 13,259,833

Operating costs and expenses 10,693,286 1,618,818 598,477 12,910,590 (1,314,184) 11,596,397

Operating income $  1,543,336 $     50,033 $     64,484 $  1,657,861 $   5,565 $  1,663,435

Assets $32,444,509 $1,780,041 $1,691,913 $35,916,472 $ (898,402) $35,018,061

Depreciation $  2,190,865 $     27,304 $   176,647 $  2,394,833 $ (36,439) $  2,358,394

Capital expenditures $  1,864,217 $     44,783 $   123,685 $  2,032,695 $ (34,409) $  1,998,286

18.  Subsequent Event
The following appropriations of retained earnings, which have not been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, were approved at a shareholders’ meeting held on June 27, 2003:

Year-end cash dividends (¥25 = $0.207 per share) ¥12,565 $104,534

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 130 1,081

Consolidated
total

Eliminations of
inter-segment
transactions

and corporateTotalOther

Construc-
tion

business

Electric
utility

business

Consolidated
total

Eliminations of
inter-segment
transactions

and corporateTotalOther

Construc-
tion

business

Electric
utility

business

Millions of
yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2002

Year ended March 31, 2003

Year ended March 31, 2003
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
March 31, 2003 and 2002

Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 3)
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, net

Nuclear fuel:

Loaded nuclear fuel
Nuclear fuel under processing

Total nuclear fuel

Investments in and advances to:

Subsidiaries and affiliates (Note 6)
Other

Total investments and advances

Deferred income taxes (Note 7)

Other assets

Current assets:

Cash
Amounts due from customers, less allowance

for uncollectible receivables (Note 4)
Fuel and supplies
Deferred income taxes (Note 7)
Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.

¥ 7,140,054)

(3,881,453)

3,258,601)

21,113)
104,088)
125,201)

215,978)
55,834)

271,813)

95,848)

3,649)

20,041)

74,832)
24,324)
11,410)
12,256)

142,866)

¥ 3,897,981)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥ 7,018,979)
(3,681,118)
3,337,860)

31,816)
79,480)

111,297)

203,595)
67,162)

270,757)

90,229)

3,510)

30,026)

80,032)
30,160)
7,990)
8,909)

157,118)

¥ 3,970,773)

$ 59,401,447)
(32,291,622)

27,109,825)

175,648)
865,956)

1,041,605)

1,796,821)
464,509)

2,261,339)

797,404)

30,357)

166,730)

622,562)
202,362)

94,925)
101,963)

1,188,569)

$ 32,429,126)
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Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Long-term debt

Accrued retirement benefits

Reserve for reprocessing irradiated nuclear fuel

Reserve for decommissioning nuclear power units

Reserve for exhibiting at EXPO 2005 AICHI

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt
Commercial paper
Accounts payable
Accrued income taxes (Note 7)
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Reserve for fluctuation in water levels

Contingent liabilities (Note 12)

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, without par value:
Authorized –  1,000,000,000 shares
Issued –     502,882,585 shares

Capital surplus
Legal reserve (Note 9)
Retained earnings (Notes 8 and 9)
Net unrealized holding gain on securities
Treasury stock, at cost; 275,670 shares in 2003 and
43,941 shares in 2002

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.

¥2,157,906)

189,225)

83,130)

28,898)

49)

125,000)

290,391)

26,000)

66,774)

20,356)

47,874)

65,589)

641,986)

6,730)

251,441)

26,497)

62,860)

447,935)

1,790)

(470)

790,054)

¥3,897,981)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥2,266,955)

184,580)

72,153)

25,579)

–)

130,000)
298,898)
37,000)
76,232)
18,010)
41,545)
52,567)

654,254)

7,024)

251,441)
26,497)
62,860)

413,490)
6,017)

(82)
760,225)

¥3,970,773)

$17,952,628)

1,574,251)

691,597)

240,415)

407)

1,039,933)

2,415,898)

216,306)

555,524)

169,351)

398,286)

545,665)

5,340,981)

55,990)

2,091,855)

220,440)

522,961)

3,726,580)

14,891)

(3,910)

6,572,828)

$32,429,126)
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Income
Tohoku Electric Power  Co., Inc.
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002

Operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel expenses
Fuel
Purchased power
Maintenance
Depreciation
Taxes other than income taxes
Subcontracting fees
Other

Operating income

Other expenses:

Interest expense
Other, net

Income before special item and income taxes

Special item:

(Reversal of) provision for reserve for fluctuation in
water levels

Income before income taxes
Income taxes (Note 7):

Current
Deferred

Net income (Note 13)

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.

¥1,479,052)

161,528)
236,197)
222,191)
163,107)
247,635)
84,780)
44,029)

134,886)
1,294,355)

184,696)

80,633)
10,567)
91,201)
93,495)

(293)

93,788)

40,738)
(6,664)

¥     59,715)

2003 20032002

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

(Note 2)

¥1,556,844)

183,141)
213,869)
251,614)
161,689)
287,011)
87,484)
46,873)

133,501)
1,365,185)

191,658)

83,683)
9,712)

93,395)
98,263)

758)
97,504)

37,986)
(2,794)

¥    62,312)

$12,304,925)

1,343,826)
1,965,033)
1,848,510)
1,356,963)
2,060,191)

705,324)
366,297)

1,122,179)
10,768,344)
1,536,572)

670,823)
87,911)

758,743)
777,828)

(2,437)

780,266)

338,918)
(55,440)

$     496,797)
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Number of
shares of
common

stock
Common

stock
Capital
surplus

Legal 
reserve

Retained
earnings

Net unrealized
holding gain 
on securities

Treasury 
stock at cost

Balance at March 31, 2001

Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors

Cash dividends paid
Transfer to legal reserve
Net income for the year 
ended March 31, 2002

Net change during
the year

Balance at March 31, 2002

Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors

Cash dividends paid
Net income for the year 
ended March 31, 2003

Net change during
the year

Balance at March 31, 2003

502,882,585)

502,882,585)

502,882,585)

¥251,441)

251,441)

¥251,441)

¥26,497)

26,497)

¥26,497)

¥62,789)

71)

62,860)

¥62,860)

¥389,105)

(140)
(37,715)

(71)

62,312)

413,490)

(130)

(25,140)

59,715)

¥447,935)

¥13,092)

(7,075)
6,017)

(4,227)

¥  1,790)

¥    –)

(82)
(82)

(388)

¥(470)

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Legal 
reserve

Retained
earnings

Net unrealized
holding gain 
on securities

Treasury 
stock at cost

Balance at March 31, 2002

Bonuses to directors and  
corporate auditors

Cash dividends paid
Net income for the year 
ended March 31, 2003

Net change during
the year

Balance at March 31, 2003

$2,091,855)

$2,091,855)

$220,440)

$220,440)

$522,961)

$522,961)

$3,440,016)

(1,081)

(209,151)

496,797)

$3,726,580)

$ 50,058)

(35,166)

$ 14,891)

$   (682)

(3,227)

$(3,910)

Non-Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Tohoku Electric Power  Co., Inc.
Years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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Contributions in aid of construction which were deducted
from the cost of property, plant and equipment at March 31,
2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002 2003

¥154,249 ¥152,704 $1,283,269

4. Amounts Due from Customers
Amounts due from customers at March 31, 2003 and 2002
consisted of the following:

2003 2002 2003

Amounts due from

customers ¥75,205 ¥80,558 $625,665

Less allowance for

uncollectible

receivables (372) (526) (3,094)

Total ¥74,832 ¥80,032 $622,562

5. Assets Pledged as Collateral
All assets of the Company are subject to certain statutory
preferential rights established to secure the bonds and
loans from The Development Bank of Japan.

Secured long-term debt at March 31, 2003 was as
follows:

Bonds ¥1,300,000 $10,815,307

Long-term loans 377,967 3,144,484

6.  Securities
The carrying and market value of the common stock of
Yurtec Corp., a subsidiary, included in investments in and
advances to subsidiaries and affiliates at March 31, 2003
and 2002, are summarized as follows:

2003 2002 2003

At cost (carrying value) ¥  5,978 ¥  5,978 $  49,733

Market value 12,663 13,270 105,349

Unrealized gain ¥  6,684 ¥  7,291 $  55,607

7. Income Taxes
The Company is subject to corporation and inhabitants’
taxes based on earnings, which, in the aggregate, resulted
in a statutory tax rate of approximately 36% for both 2003
and 2002.

The significant components of the Company’s deferred
tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as
follows:

2003 2002 2003

Current deferred tax

assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued employees’

retirement   benefits ¥  57,497 ¥  51,297 $478,344

Deferred charges 18,611 21,846 154,833

Other 32,684 28,514 271,913

Total deferred tax assets 108,793 101,658 905,099

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized holding

gain on securities (1,518) (3,422) (12,628)

Other (15) (16) (124)

Total deferred tax

liabilities (1,533) (3,439) (12,753)

Net deferred tax assets ¥107,259 ¥  98,219 $892,337

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
March 31, 2003

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies

The accompanying non-consolidated financial
statements of Tohoku Electric Power Company,
Incorporated (the “Company”) have been compiled
from the financial statements prepared by the Company
as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of
Japan and are prepared on the basis of accounting
principles and practices generally accepted and applied
in Japan, which differ in certain respects from the
application and disclosure requirements of International
Accounting Standards.

The accompanying non-consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the same basis as
the accounting policies discussed in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements except that these
financial statements relate to the Company only, with
investments in subsidiaries and affiliates being
substantially stated at cost.

2.  U.S. Dollar Amounts
The method of translating yen amounts into U.S. dollar
amounts is the same as that described in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

3.  Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment at March 31, 2003 and
2002 is summarized as follows:

Hydro power plant

Thermal power plant

Nuclear power plant

Internal combustion 

power plant

Transmission plant

Transformation plant

Distribution plant

General plant

Property leased to others

Other

Construction work in progress

Total

¥   481,404

1,617,620

895,798

26,396

1,325,738

716,935

1,205,539

430,875

501

17,908

6,718,718

421,336

¥7,140,054

¥   476,777

1,615,073

896,326

26,314

1,312,158

708,013

1,181,538

410,402

501

17,958

6,645,066

373,912

¥7,018,979

$  4,005,024

13,457,737

7,452,562

219,600

11,029,434

5,964,517

10,029,442

3,584,650

4,168

148,985

55,896,156

3,505,291

$59,401,447

2003 20032002

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars 

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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The differences between the effective tax rates reflected in
the accompanying statements of income for the years
ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the statutory tax rate
were immaterial.

8.  Retained Earnings Appropriated for 
Voluntary Reserves

Retained earnings appropriated for voluntary reserves,
which are subaccounts within retained earnings, are stated
in accordance with the Special Taxation Measures Law and
the Commercial Code.  The reserves are deducted from
taxable income when provided and reversed to taxable
income in subsequent years, which results in a deferral of
income tax payment.  See Note 9.

9. Legal Reserve and Retained Earnings
In accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code,
the Company has provided a legal reserve as an
appropriation of retained earnings.  The legal reserve may
be used to reduce a deficit or may be transferred to
common stock through suitable action of the shareholders
or directors but is not available for dividends.

Retained earnings at March 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted
of the following:

2003 2002 2003

Retained earnings

appropriated for

voluntary reserves

(see Note 8):

Reserve for loss on

overseas investments ¥         29 ¥         27 $          241

Reserve for

depreciation of

nuclear power plants – 3,461 –

Retained earnings

appropriated for

reserve for cost

fluctuation adjustments 103,000 103,000 856,905

Retained earnings

appropriated for

general purposes 230,400 190,400 1,916,805

Unappropriated

retained earnings 114,506 116,601 952,628

Total ¥447,935 ¥413,490 $3,726,580

10. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses for the years ended
March 31, 2003 and 2002 were ¥10,208 million ($84,925
thousand) and ¥11,091 million, respectively.

11. Leases
The following pro forma amounts represent the acquisition
costs, accumulated depreciation and net book value of the
leased machinery and equipment at March 31, 2003 and
2002, which would have been reflected in the balance
sheets if finance lease accounting had been applied to the
finance leases currently accounted for as operating leases:

2003 2002 2003

Acquisition costs ¥19,619 ¥20,858 $163,219

Accumulated depreciation 10,283 8,743 85,549

Net book value ¥  9,335 ¥12,114 $  77,662

For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, lease
payments relating to finance leases accounted for as
operating leases amounted to ¥4,050 million ($33,693
thousand) and ¥4,246 million, respectively, which equaled
the depreciation expense of the leased assets computed by
the straight-line method over the respective lease terms.

Future minimum lease payments (including the interest
portion thereon) subsequent to March 31, 2003 for finance
leases accounted for as operating leases are summarized as
follows:

Year ending March 31,

2004 ¥3,547 $29,509

2005 and thereafter 5,788 48,153

Total ¥9,335 $77,662

12. Contingent Liabilities
At March 31, 2003, the Company was contingently liable as
co-guarantors of loans of other companies, primarily in
connection with the procurement of fuel, in the amount of
¥142,316 million ($1,183,993 thousand), and as guarantors
of employees’ housing loans, in the amount of ¥3,524
million ($29,317 thousand).

At March 31, 2003, the Company assigned to a bank its
obligation to make payments of ¥266,905 million
($2,220,507 thousand) in the aggregate plus interest on the
principal of its bonds due through 2006 at rates ranging
from 4.85% to 6.90%.  In this connection, the Company
made a deposit with the bank in fulfillment of the related
obligation.  The deposit and the bonds have thus been
excluded from the accompanying balance sheet at March
31, 2003.

13. Amounts Per Share
The amounts per share for the years ended March 31, 2003
and 2002 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2003 2002 2003

Net income:

Basic ¥ 118.51 ¥   123.91 $ 0.985

Diluted – 122.96 –

Cash dividends

applicable to the year 50.00 50.00 0.415

At March 31, 2003 2002 2003

Net assets ¥1,571.65 ¥1,511.87 $13.075

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of
yen

U.S. dollarsYen

U.S. dollarsYen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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The Tohoku region, which is the service area of Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.,
represents 21% of the total area of Japan. It is an expansive region full of
development potential.

As for demand from large-scale industrial customers, the materials
production industry’s share fell to 35.9% in FY 2002 from 77.5% in FY 1973,
while the processing/assembly industry’s share rose to 64.1% in FY 2002 from
22.5% in FY 1973. These shifts were caused not only by changes in the Japanese
industrial structure in the aftermath of the oil crisis but also by Tohoku’s
resources (such as land, water, and labor) that served as a magnet for advanced
industries, including the electrical machinery industry.

Turning to the current industrial structure of the Tohoku region, the electrical
machinery industry accounts for more than 30% of the regional industrial sales, well
exceeding an equivalent share in the nationwide total. In addition, the proportion of
plant construction in the Tohoku region to the national total constantly averages
around 20%, uniquely including many of the most advanced plants. Therefore, the
stock vintage (the average age of plants and equipment) of manufacturing
industries in the Tohoku region is young and new compared to the national
average, which constitutes a comparative regional advantage in productivity and
stronger resistance against cyclical changes or an economic slowdown.

Furthermore, the Company reaps benefits from a demand profile typical of
colder districts, where the difference between peaks and troughs is relatively
small and which provides the strength of high-capacity factors of installed
generation facilities.

Total surface area
377,864km2

Tohoku
21.0%

The surface area of the Tohoku region is
approx. 80,000km2 ,occupying one fifth of
Japan. It is almost the size of Austria.

The regional population of approx. 12
million represents one tenth of the
national total, exceeding the total
population of Greece. 

The regional gross output is ¥43.1 trillion
($360 billion), which is almost equal to
the Netherlands figure.

The industrial output of the Tohoku region is
¥22.7 trillion ($190 billion) and accounts for
7.6% of the national total.

Surface Area Population Gross Output Industrial Output

Tohoku
9.8%

Tohoku
8.7%

Tohoku
7.6%

Total population
126.07million

Total gross output
¥493.8 trillion

Total industrial 
output

¥300.5 trillion

Industrial Output by Sector (Tohoku/Japan) for 2000
The share of electrical machinery in the Tohoku region exceeds 30%
and is uniquely larger than that in the entire Japan.

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Japan
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Plant Construction by Region
(Site space of 1,000m2 or more)
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The ratio of plant construction in the Tohoku region continues to
stand at 20% level, with its unique feature of a large presence of
highiy advanced plants. 
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Higashi-Niigata thermal power station.

Socioeconomic Aspects
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Electric Power Sales to Large-Scale Industrial Customers by Segment (FY 2002)

0%

A large share occupied by the machinery and equipment manufacturing industry and nonferrous
metal industry is a feature unique to Tohoku EPCo.
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Due to the electricity consumption pattern typical of cold districts where the difference between peaks and troughs is 
relatively small, Tohoku EPCo has high load factors.
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35.436.036.037.7

46.860.570.877.5

Changes in Composition Ratios of the Processing/Assembly

Industry and the Intermediate Products Industry in Large 

Industrial Customers in the Tohoku Region

The processing and assembly industry: B+C(C=Machines)

The intermediate products industry: A

As for the Company's Large-scale Industrial customers, the share of the intermediate products industry fell in FY 2002 
to 35.9% from 77.5% of the FY 1973 level, while the share of the processing/assembly industry in FY 2002 rose to 64.1% 
from 22.5% in FY 1973. 

New Central Load Dispatching System
The New Central Load Dispatching System is the latest system introduced in November 2002. With greatly improved functionality through the introduction
of the latest hardware technology and development of new software, the system contributes to increasing reliability and economic efficiency.

Electric Power Business
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Tohoku Electric Power in Comparison with 10 Japanese Electric Power Companies

Percentage Shares of Electric Power Sales by EPCo
(10 Japanese EPCos' total for FY 2002=100%)
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(Electric Power Company)
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Tohoku EPCo ranks
5th among 10
Japanese EPCos in
terms of electric 
power sales.

Percentage Shares of Operating Revenues by EPCo
(10 Japanese EPCos' total for FY 2002=100%)
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Operating Revenues
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Operating Revenues
 (Non-Consolidated)

Tohoku EPCo’s 
operating revenues
rank 4th among 10
Japanese EPCos on
both consolidated
and non-
consolidated basis.

Percentage Shares of Total Assets by EPCo
(10 Japanese EPCos' total for FY 2002=100%)
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Tohoku EPCo’s total
assets rank 4th
among 10 Japanese
EPCos on a
consolidated basis.
(rank 5th on a non-
consolidated basis)
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Company
(Date of Establishment)

Consolidated Subsidiaries

Sakata Kyodo Power Co., Ltd.
(April 2, 1973) 

Tousei Kougyou Co., Inc.
(Jan. 26, 1953)

Tohoku Natural Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(Feb. 28,2000)

Yurtec Corp.
(Oct. 10, 1944)

Tohoku Electric Power Engineering 
& Construction Co., Inc.
(Feb. 1, 1959)

Nihonkai LNG Co., Ltd.
(Aug. 26, 1978) 

Tohoku Natural Gas Co., Inc.
(July 8,1993)

Corenet Tohoku, Inc.
(Dec. 14, 1998)

Tohoku Intelligent Telecommunication Co., Inc.
(Oct. 27, 1992)

Tohoku Information Systems Co., Inc.
(June 5, 1954)

Electric power business
(Wholesale power services)

Electric power business
(Wholesale power services)

Electric power business
(Sale of electric power based on renewable energy)

Construction business
(Electricity, telecommunications, civil engineering, and construction work)

Equity Method Affiliates

Soma Kyodo Power Co., Ltd.
(June 1, 1981)

Joban Joint Power Co., Ltd.
(Dec. 23, 1955)

Arakawa Hydro-Electric Power Co., Ltd.
(April 22, 1960)

Electric power business
(Wholesale power services)

Electric power business
(Wholesale power services)

Electric power business
(Power sales)

Construction business
(Construction, improvement, repair and maintenance of generation 
and transformation facilities)

Gas business
(Purchase, receipt, gasification, sales, and delivery of LNG)

Gas business
(Supply and sale of natural gas and LNG)

Tohoku Energy Service Co., Inc.
(Dec. 20,2000)

Information processing, Tele-communication business
(Consulting, development and operation of information systems and networks)

Other Business
(Supply of electric power and thermal energy mainly based on self-generation 
and cogeneration, Operation and maintenance of heat storage systems)

TDG Finance Co., Ltd.
(Feb. 5,2002)

Other Business
(Providing loans and other forms of financial services)

Information processing, Tele-communication business
(Contracting business, offering IT solutions in planning, 
management and operation)

Information processing, Tele-communication business
(Tele-communication and PHS services)

Outline of Business Number of 
Employees

Paid-in 
Capital

(¥ million)

Equity 
Ownership

(%)
Total Assets

(¥ million) Operating 
revenues

Income before 
special item and 

income taxes

Business results for FY 2002
(¥ million)

(Notes)1.This table shows the business results of each subsidiary on a non-consolidated basis.
2.Number of Employees shows the number of staff for each subsidiary at the end of fiscal year.

120 25,500 100.00 36,021 20,306 97

46 5,270 100.00 26,269 2,461 39

4 300 71.68 2,053 408 (24)

4,269 7,803 46.76 137,115 151,235 3,933

1,615 1,000 100.00 55,869 49,398 2,812

123 12,000 42.33 94,016 28,827 1,799

15 300 55.00 1,855 1,868 20

60 12,500 100.00 15,693 2,077 382

226 10,000 51.38 61,119 21,645 2,268

571 96 100.00 11,680 24,511 976

27 375 68.91 1,230 1,868 (159)

- 1,500 100.00 23,008 35 8

146 120,000 50.00 254,560 72,555 180

236 56,000 49.12 70,282 56,906 76

14 350 50.00 1,916 616 40

(as of March, 2003)

(as of March, 2003)

Non-Consolidated Corporate Data
Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.

Conditions of Subsidiaries

Registered Head Office 7-1 Honcho 1-chome, Aoba-ku, Sendai, Miyagi 980-8550, Japan
URL: http://www.tohoku-epco.co.jp

Date Established May 1, 1951

Paid-in Capital ¥251,441 million

Common Stock Authorized: 1,000,000,000 shares
Issued: 502,882,585 shares

Common Stock Price Range
FY 2002 FY 2001

(Tokyo Stock Exchange)
High Low High Low

First quarter ¥1,683 ¥1,525 ¥2,035 ¥1,557
Second quarter ¥1,749 ¥1,596 ¥2,260 ¥1,965
Third quarter ¥1,749 ¥1,591 ¥2,230 ¥1,710
Fourth quarter ¥1,808 ¥1,688 ¥1,786 ¥1,640

Cash Dividends FY 2002 FY 2001
Interim ¥25.00 ¥25.00
Year-end ¥25.00 ¥25.00

Total ¥50.00 ¥50.00

Number of Shareholders 253,117

Number of Employees 12,077 (Not including on loan or leave.)

Number of Customers
(Excluding the deregulated segment) 7,606,408

Service Area 79,550 square kilometers

Transfer Agent UFJ Trust Bank Limited
4-3 Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan
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Chairman of the board Toshiaki Yashima

President Keiichi Makuta

Executive vice presidents Hiroyuki Suzuki

Hiroaki Takahashi

Mitsuru Kumagai

Kiyohiko Sato

Managing directors Tsuneo Saito

Takeo Nishi

Kyonosuke Sasaki

Isao Ishikawa

Masayuki Oyama

Shigeo Saito

Kunihide Kobayashi

Koki Sampei

Directors Keiichi Kato

Teruaki Suzuki

Hiroo Sato

Mitsuru Suzuki

Fumiaki Maekawa

Kiryo Igarashi

Takumi Ishizuka

Standing auditors Eigo Yonezawa

Yutaka Suto

Auditors Josei Itoh

Sakuya Fujiwara

Goro Higaki

(as of June, 2003)

Head office 7-1 Honcho 1-chome, Aoba-ku, Sendai, Miyagi 980-8550, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)22-225-2111 or  +81-(0)22-799-6086
Facsimile: +81-(0)22-225-2550

Aomori branch 12-19 Minatomachi 2-chome, Aomori, Aomori 030-8560, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)17-742-2191
Facsimile: +81-(0)17-744-2140

Iwate branch 1-25 Konyacho, Morioka, Iwate 020-8521, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)19-653-2115
Facsimile: +81-(0)19-653-5980

Akita branch 15-6 Sanno 5-chome, Akita, Akita 010-0951, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)18-863-3151
Facsimile: +81-(0)18-823-4945

Miyagi branch 5th Floor, Sumitomo Seimei Sendai-Chuo Bldg., 6-1 Chuo 4-chome,
Aoba-ku, Sendai, Miyagi 980-6005, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)22-225-2141
Facsimile: +81-(0)22-213-4211

Yamagata branch 1-9 Honcho 2-chome, Yamagata, Yamagata 990-8691, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)23-641-1321
Facsimile: +81-(0)23-641-5982

Fukushima branch 2-35 Okitamacho, Fukushima, Fukushima 960-8522, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)24-522-9151
Facsimile: +81-(0)24-521-2120

Niigata branch 84 Gobancho, Kamiokawamae-dori, Niigata, Niigata 951-8633, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)25-223-3151
Facsimile: +81-(0)25-222-6447

Tokyo branch 5th Floor, Daini-Tekko Bldg., 8-2 Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo 100-0005, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)3-3231-3501
Facsimile: +81-(0)3-3201-4832

Board of Directors

Directory

Tohoku Electric Power‘s head office.



Major Facilities

Power Stations (Total) 229 16.05GW

Hydroelectric 211 2.42GW

Thermal 17 11.45GW
(including geothermal and internal combustion)

Nuclear 1 2.17GW

Transmission Facilities

Line Length  14,737km

Circuit Length 23,445km

Supports 58,963

Substations 599 57.67GVA

Distribution Facilities

Line Length 138,323km

Supports 2,920,309

Major hydroelectric power station

Thermal, geothermal or nuclear power station

Electric power station under construction

Other company’s power station

Major substation

Other company’s major substation

Other company’s AC/DC converter station

Major switching station

Other company’s major switching station

Transmission line (500kV)

Transmission line (275kV)

Transmission line (154kV)

Other company’s transmission line

Shimokita

Higashidori Nuclear

Hachinohe

Gonohe

Noshiro

Noshiro

Sumikawa
Geothermal

Kakkonda Geothermal

Iwate
Akita

Akita Shizukuishi

Tobishima
Ugo

Uenotai
Geothermal

Miyagi

Miyagi-Chuo

Mizusawa

Ofunato

Yakuwa

Shinjo

HondojiAwashima

Higashi-Niigata

Kita-Niigata

Sendai

Nishi-Sendai

Ishinomaki

Onagawa 
Nuclear

Sendai

Shin-Sendai

Yonezawa

Fukushima

Minami-
Soma

Niigata

Niigata

Echigo

Shinchi

Yanaizu-
Nishiyama
Geothermal

Numazawa No.2

Minami-Uonuma

Miyashita

Yanaizu

Ueda
Honna

Honna

Chuetsu

Higashi-Joetsu

Iwaki
Izumizaki

Sukagawa

Haramachi

Ryotsu

SadoAikawa

Kariwa

Ishizone

Nishi-Yamagata

Miyako

Kamikita

Aomori

Kita-Tsugaru

(as of March 31, 2003)

The Japan Sea

The Pacific Ocean

Kitahon HVDC Link
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Power Supply Network



Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc. (Japan)

7-1 Honcho 1-chome, Aoba-ku, Sendai, Miyagi 980-8550, Japan
Telephone: +81-(0)22-225-2111
Facsimile: +81-(0)22-225-2550
URL: http://www.tohoku-epco.co.jp

The Nebuta Festival is one of three major festivals in the Tohoku region, 
which is our franchise territory. The origin of the festival dates back to 
the beginning of the 18th century and is thought to have started as 
purification ceremonies to wash impurities into the river and the sea.

The Nebuta Festival is an annual event held in Aomori city in early 
August. It attracts more than 3.5 million tourists every year from all over 
Japan and many parts of the world. At the festival, dancers wearing 
costumes unique to the area surround Nebuta floats and dance to music 
as they parade through the city and even into the coastal waters on 
board.

The floats represent figures taken from Japanese history or myth. 
Bamboo and wire are used to make the framework for the figures, 
which are then covered with Japanese paper. Lights placed inside the 
figures are used for illumination. Nebuta floats, which can reach up to 9 
meters in width and 5 meters in height, glow in the midsummer night, 
captivating the hearts of festivalgoers.

Tohoku Electric Power organized the Nebuta Society, which builds a 
new float every year to participate in the festival. The photographs on 
the cover and back cover are of our Nebuta floats.

Tohoku Electric Power Co., Inc.

This report was printed in an eco-friendly manner, 
employing waterless printing and using soybean-
oil-based ink and 100% recycled paper.

ANNUAL REPORT
2003

For the year ended March 31, 2003

The photographs that appear on the covers of our annual reports are based on 
the local characteristics of the Tohoku region, our franchise territory, in 
recognition of one of the Company’s management philosophies: “prospering 
together with the community.”
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